
MEETING AGENDA 
Board of Library Trustees | Altadena Library District 

Main Library Community Room 
600 E. Mariposa St 
Altadena, CA 91001 

 March 25, 2024 – 5:00 p.m. 

  IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE MARCH 25, 2024 MEETING 

This meeting will be available to view in a hybrid fashion, utilizing teleconference, electronic, and in-
person means to allow for a variety of public viewing and public commenting options. The public is invited 
to attend the meeting in-person, or livestream the meeting. The live stream of the meeting may be 
viewed by visiting the Altadena Library District’s YouTube channel at the following URL 
https://www.youtube.com/c/AltadenaLibrary   

SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In order to facilitate in-person and virtual public participation at meetings, the District will accept public 
comment on agenda items by email or online public comment form up to two (2) hours prior to the start 
of Board of Trustees meetings. You may do this by emailing hello@altadenalibrary.org or by submitting to 
www.altadenalibrary.org/publiccomment.  

Those wishing to make their comment virtually during the live meeting may request to do so, and will be 
provided the zoom link for the meeting. 

If you wish to make public comment in-person during the meeting on any agenda item, you must email or 
submit a comment form either two (2) hours before the meeting, or at the start of the meeting to the 
District Administrative Assistant or other District staff member using a comment card. If your comment 
card is not received by the start of the meeting, you may not be able to make your comment. Comment 
cards will be available in a prominent location at the entrance to the meeting location. 

If you wish your comments to be read aloud by a staff member during the meeting, please indicate so in 
your email, the online public comment form, or the physical comment card available at the meeting. If 
you submit more than one, only the first comment received will be read aloud. The District reserves the 
right to summarize comments if necessary for the orderly and timely flow of the meeting. All written 
comments in their entirety will become part of the meeting record and will be forwarded to the legislative 
body.  

Comments are limited to two (2) minutes and will be timed. 

If you are unable to submit via email, online, or attend the meeting in-person, you can call in to (626) 798-
0833 ext. 103, during the corresponding item of the agenda.  For public comment on any non-agenda 
item, please plan to call at 5:00 pm. 

PUBLIC REQUESTS FOR DOCUMENTS: The District provides a public inspection copy of all materials 
included in the agenda packet distributed to the Board members. Members of the public who wish to 
obtain a copy of any document may do so by completing a Request for Public Document form and 
submitting it to Administration, who will arrange for the documents to be copied at a charge of 15¢ per 
page. Request forms are available at the District Administration offices. 

Page 1 of 138

https://www.youtube.com/c/AltadenaLibrary
http://www.altadenalibrary.org/publiccomment


In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special assistance to participate in the 
meeting, please contact Library Administration at (626) 798-0833 x103 at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting so the Altadena Library District may make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the 
meeting. 

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: The Altadena Library District acknowledges its presence on the traditional, 
ancestral, and unceded land of the Gabrielino Tongva peoples.  Altadena is located on the stolen homelands 
of the Xaxaamonga (Hahamongna) tribal band.  The traditional territory of the Gabrielino Tongva is referred 
to as Tovaangar, which includes the areas currently known as Los Angeles County, Riverside County, West 
San Bernardino County, parts of Orange County as well as the four southern Channel Islands.  Entities such 
as the U.S. government and non-Native settlers have subjected the Gabrielino Tongva peoples to historic 
and continuing injustices, including genocide, forced displacement, and cultural and linguistic erasure. 
Altadena Library commits to learning, educating, and informing its staff and residents of present-day 
Altadena about the rich histories, vibrant communities, and culture of Gabrielino Tongva people, present 
and past, through our collection development, resources, and program offerings.    

I. Call to Order

a. Land Acknowledgement

II. Roll Call

a. Approval/Reordering of Agenda Items

b. Adoption of Agenda

c. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

III. Consent Calendar

a. The Board of Library Trustees hereby approves the items and recommended actions in the

Consent Calendar listed below:

Approval of Minutes –

FEBRUARY 26, 2024 REGULAR MEETING

IV. Consideration of Items Removed from the Consent Calendar

Items removed from the Consent Calendar discussed individually at this time.

V. Department Updates & Special Presentations (Informational)  PAGES 9 - 30 

Page 2 of 138



a. Special Presentation – Early Literacy

b. Department Update Reports – February 2024

VI. Reports (Informational)

a. Support Groups PAGES 31

i. Altadena Library Foundation

ii. Friends of the Altadena Library

b. Administrative Update  PAGES 32 - 38

c. Financial Reports – January 2024  PAGES 39 - 50

d. Board of Trustees Standing Committee Reports

None

e. Board of Trustees Ad Hoc Committee Reports PAGES 51 - 53

i. Facilities Committee March 2024

ii. Elections Committee March 2024

f. Liaison Reports PAGES 54 - 58

VII. Unfinished Business

None

VIII. New Business

a. Review and approval of the Bob Lucas Memorial Library and Literacy Center Construction 

Project RFP Recommendation (Action)  PAGES 59 – 134

b. Review and approval of the Bob Lucas Memorial Library and Literacy Center Construction 

Inspection and/or Soils Engineering on-call Services RFP Recommendation (Action) 

PAGES 135 - 137

c. Review and Approval of late opening of the Altadena Main Library on 4/18/24, to 

accommodate community and staff attendance at the Bob Lucas Memorial Library and 

Page 3 of 138



Literacy Center Groundbreaking Event (Action) PAGES 138 

IX. Governance

X. Announcements & Planning

a. Correspondence

b. Proposed Future Agenda Items

XI. Adjournment

a. Adjourn Meeting

Page 4 of 138



MEETING MINUTES 
Board of Library Trustees | Altadena Library District 

Main Library Community Room 
600 E. Mariposa St 
Altadena, CA 91001 

 February 26, 2024 – 5:00 p.m. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE FEBRUARY 26, 2024 MEETING 

This meeting will be available to view in a hybrid fashion, utilizing teleconference, electronic, and in-
person means to allow for a variety of public viewing and public commenting options. The public is invited 
to attend the meeting in-person, or livestream the meeting. The live stream of the meeting may be 
viewed by visiting the Altadena Library District’s YouTube channel at the following URL 
https://www.youtube.com/c/AltadenaLibrary   

SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In order to facilitate in-person and virtual public participation at meetings, the District will accept public 
comment on agenda items by email or online public comment form up to two (2) hours prior to the start 
of Board of Trustees meetings. You may do this by emailing hello@altadenalibrary.org or by submitting to 
www.altadenalibrary.org/publiccomment.  

Those wishing to make their comment virtually during the live meeting may request to do so, and will be 
provided the zoom link for the meeting. 

If you wish to make public comment in-person during the meeting on any agenda item, you must email or 
submit a comment form either two (2) hours before the meeting, or at the start of the meeting to the 
District Administrative Assistant or other District staff member using a comment card. If your comment 
card is not received by the start of the meeting, you may not be able to make your comment. Comment 
cards will be available in a prominent location at the entrance to the meeting location. 

If you wish your comments to be read aloud by a staff member during the meeting, please indicate so in 
your email, the online public comment form, or the physical comment card available at the meeting. If 
you submit more than one, only the first comment received will be read aloud. The District reserves the 
right to summarize comments if necessary for the orderly and timely flow of the meeting. All written 
comments in their entirety will become part of the meeting record and will be forwarded to the legislative 
body.  

Comments are limited to two (2) minutes and will be timed. 

If you are unable to submit via email, online, or attend the meeting in-person, you can call in to (626) 798-
0833 ext. 103, during the corresponding item of the agenda.  For public comment on any non-agenda 
item, please plan to call at 5:00 pm. 

PUBLIC REQUESTS FOR DOCUMENTS: The District provides a public inspection copy of all materials 
included in the agenda packet distributed to the Board members. Members of the public who wish to 
obtain a copy of any document may do so by completing a Request for Public Document form and 
submitting it to Administration who will arrange for the documents to be copied at a charge of 15¢ per 
page. Request forms are available at the District Administration offices. 

Page 5 of 138

https://www.youtube.com/c/AltadenaLibrary
http://www.altadenalibrary.org/publiccomment


In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special assistance to participate in the 
meeting, please contact Library Administration at (626) 798-0833 x103 at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting so the Altadena Library District may make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the 
meeting. 

LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: The Altadena Library District acknowledges its presence on the traditional, 
ancestral, and unceded land of the Gabrielino Tongva peoples.  Altadena is located on the stolen homelands 
of the Xaxaamonga (Hahamongna) tribal band.  The traditional territory of the Gabrielino Tongva is referred 
to as Tovaangar, which includes the areas currently known as Los Angeles County, Riverside County, West 
San Bernardino County, parts of Orange County as well as the four southern Channel Islands.  Entities such 
as the U.S. government and non-Native settlers have subjected the Gabrielino Tongva peoples to historic 
and continuing injustices, including genocide, forced displacement, and cultural and linguistic erasure. 
Altadena Library commits to learning, educating, and informing its staff and residents of present-day 
Altadena about the rich histories, vibrant communities, and culture of Gabrielino Tongva people, present 
and past, through our collection development, resources, and program offerings.    

I. Call to Order
a. Land Acknowledgement

President Wilkerson read the Land Acknowledgement.
II. Roll Call

President Wilkerson called roll. Trustees Andrues, Capell, Clark, Lim, and Wilkerson responded as
present.

a. Approval/Reordering of Agenda Items
A request was made to reorder the agenda items.

b. Adoption of Agenda
Trustee Clark moved to reorder the agenda items as follows: Agenda Items VI. A.i
and VI A.ii as items II. D. Seconded by Trustee Lim.
Roll Call Vote:
Trustee Andrues: Aye
Trustee Capell: Aye
Trustee Clark: Aye
Trustee Lim: Aye
Trustee Wilkerson: Aye
Motion Passed

c. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items
None

d. Support Groups PAGES 33 – 34
Mark Mariscal provided the reports for the Altadena Library Foundation and the Friends of
the Altadena Library support groups.

i. Altadena Library Foundation
ii. Friends of the Altadena Library

III. Consent Calendar
a. The Board of Library Trustees hereby approves the items and recommended actions in the

Consent Calendar listed below:
Approval of Minutes –
JANUARY 22, 2024 REGULAR MEETING
Trustee Clark moved to approve the minutes for the January 22, 2024 Regular
Meeting. Seconded by Trustee Capell.
Roll Call Vote:
Trustee Andrues: Aye
Trustee Capell: Aye

Page 6 of 138



Trustee Clark: Aye 
Trustee Lim: Aye 
Trustee Wilkerson: Aye 
Motion Passed 

IV. Consideration of Items Removed from the Consent Calendar
Items removed from the Consent Calendar discussed individually at this time.

V. Department Updates & Special Presentations (Informational)  PAGES 11 - 32
a. Special Presentation – Altadena Poets Laureates

District Director Nikki Winslow provided the report.
b. Department Update Reports – January 2024

VI. Reports (Informational)
a. Support Groups PAGES 33 - 34

i. Altadena Library Foundation
ii. Friends of the Altadena Library

b. Administrative Update  PAGES 35 – 42
District Director Winslow provided the report.

c. Financial Reports – January 2024  PAGES 43 – 53
Kristi Even provided the report.

d. Board of Trustees Standing Committee Reports PAGES 54 - 60
i. Budget Committee 2/8/24

Trustee Lim provided the report.

e. Board of Trustees Ad Hoc Committee Reports
i. Facilities Committee January 2024

Trustee Clark provided the report.

f. Liaison Reports
Trustee Andrues provided a report.

VII. Unfinished Business
None

VIII. New Business
a. Review and Approval of Mid-Year Adjustments (Action)  PAGES 61 – 72

Trustee Capell moved to approve the FY 2023-2024 mid-year budget adjustments.
Seconded by Trustee Andrues.
Roll Call Vote:
Trustee Andrues: Aye
Trustee Capell: Aye
Trustee Clark: Aye
Trustee Lim: Aye
Trustee Wilkerson: Aye
Motion Passed

b. Review and approval of updates to the Code of Conduct Policy (Action)
PAGES 73 – 76
Trustee Lim moved to approve the updates to the Code of Conduct Policy.
Seconded by Trustee Clark.
Roll Call Vote:
Trustee Andrues: Aye
Trustee Capell: Aye
Trustee Clark: Aye
Trustee Lim: Aye
Trustee Wilkerson: Aye

Page 7 of 138



Motion Passed 
IX. Governance
X. Announcements & Planning

a. Correspondence
b. Proposed Future Agenda Items

XI. Adjournment
a. Adjourn Meeting

The meeting was adjourned at 6:44pm.

Page 8 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
ADULT SERVCES REPORT FOR 

FEBRUARY 2024 

DEPARTMENT: Adult Services MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024

PREPARED BY: Danielle Guerrero LOCATION: Main Library Community 

Fab Lab 
In February, the Fab Lab maintained its trend of active and productive open hours. Throughout 
the month, there were 32 sessions, totaling 56 logged hours of use. 

On Monday, February 5th, the Fab Lab held a drop-in workshop where participants engaged in 
customizing Cricut files to create their own Valentine’s cards. In collaboration with Postal 
Service for the Dead, attendees were encouraged to personalize the cards for individuals in 
their lives who had passed away. During the session, participants shared stories and memories 
of their departed loved ones while decorating the cards. 

Mobile Library 
The Curiosity Connection remained active in February, participating in events at USC Pacific 
Asia Museum and Loma Alta Park. These engagements attracted considerable attendance, 
allowing our staff to introduce the unique offerings of our library district to over 1,000 individuals 
throughout the month. 

Page 9 of 138



Pictured is one of the crafting opportunities at USC PAM. 

Little Free Library  
With help of the Curiosity Connection, the Adult Services team made two Little Free Library 
(LFL) deliveries, including a new owner on Oliveras. Staff curated a selection of current fiction, 
mystery, suspense, and historical fiction books to refill both LFL. 

Library of Things 
Progress continues expanding the Library of Things collection with the recent acquisition of 5 
new Nintendo Switch consoles. These consoles, made possible through a grant from the 
Tournament of Roses, have proven to be highly popular among our patrons. We are delighted 
to nearly double the number of available systems, enhancing access to this sought-after 
resource.  

Outreach
For Black History Month, LA County Parks and Recreation organized a celebration at Loma 
Alta Park during the Altadena Neighborhood Farmers Market. The event featured a Tina Turner 
tribute band, BBQ dinner, and various activities for children. ALD staff had the opportunity to 
engage with the community, connecting with over 85 families throughout the event.  

Page 10 of 138



   
 

   
 

 
 
Staff also participated in the vibrant Black History Program held at Farnsworth Park in early 
February. The event featured Ms. Adrienne Bratton, daughter of the first African American 
umpire in Major League Baseball, who delivered a compelling speech accompanied by 
captivating photos and clips. Attendees also enjoyed music by the Michael Haggins Orchestra, 
enhancing the overall experience. 

 
 
Art at the Library 
 
Art on Display 
For January and February, the library is showcasing "Postal Service for the Dead: The First 
Year." This ongoing collective project encourages people to send letters to deceased loved 
ones. Established in December 2022, the exhibition features a curated selection of letters and 
postcards received during the first year of the project. 
 

Page 11 of 138



   
 

   
 

     

 
 
Programming  
 
Writing Your Story with Author Lorinda Hawkins Smith 
Through creative prompts and exercises, Lorinda took attendees on a journey to help discover 
the joys of writing and sharing their story. Lorinda is an accomplished author, writer, musician, 
and playwright. 
 
Celebrating the Pursuit of Peace and Justice through Music and Drama 
In collaboration with the Altadena Historical Society and All Saints Church, we hosted Brother 
Gerald and the Peace Players. This was such an inspirational event that featured 
dramatizations of Martin Luther King, Jr., a youth drumming circle, and beautiful songs! The 
Community Room was jam-packed, with guests watching from the door. What a wonderful way 
to celebrate Black History Month!  
 

 
 
Bridget “Biddy” Mason: Her Open Hand 
We welcomed Lorinda Hawkins Smith back to ALD for another Black History Month program. 
This time, she took us on a storytelling journey of how Bridget “Biddy” Mason won her freedom 

Page 12 of 138



   
 

   
 

from enslavement in a California court and became a wealthy Los Angeles pioneer and 
philanthropist. Attendees were thoroughly entertained through Lorinda’s artistic dramatization 
and powerpoint presentation! 
   
Second Saturday 
February's Second Saturday event featured the captivating sounds of New Orleans with Kenny 
Sara, drawing an impressive attendance of 198 enthusiastic patrons. In celebration of the 
upcoming Mardi Gras festivities, attendees dressed in vibrant purple, green, and gold attire, 
creating a lively atmosphere filled with laughter and dancing. 
 

 
 

 
Murder Mystery 
February's Murder Mystery event immersed participants in the Mardi Gras theme, with 
attendees wearing elaborate costumes inspired by a Mardi Gras Ball. Snacks for the event 
were generously provided by WellBe Health. 
 
Lunar New Year Celebration 
In honor of the Lunar New Year, the library hosted The Immortal Lion Dancers, accompanied 
by engaging craft activities for children, attracting 129 attendees. Patrons praised the 
performers for their exceptional demonstrations of dragon customs, ensuring a delightful 
experience for all, especially the younger audience members. 
 

           
 
 
Adult Craft: Clay Coaster 
This month's adult craft session focused on clay coasters, sparking patrons' creativity and 
yielding fantastic results. At the Main library, six individuals participated, while eight joined the 
craft session at Plant Material, showcasing their imaginative designs. 

Page 13 of 138



   
 

   
 

 

 
 
Cozy Crafters 
The Cozy Crafters Club enjoyed another successful gathering with nine attendees engaging in 
various crafts, including knitting, crocheting, embroidery, and mending, hosted at Calisto Tea 
House. 
 

 
 
 
ALD Garden Club 
The garden club experienced growth this month, with seven participants attending. Beginning 
with planting seeds of peas, beets, lettuce, spinach, radishes, and carrots at the start of the 
month, the club saw seedlings emerge by the end of the month. Additionally, members cleared 
the flower bed and planted flower seeds, with generous donations including poppy seeds from 
one attendee. 
 

Page 14 of 138



Sewing Series Finale 
The sewing series led by Amy Blea concluded with a full class of 10 participants, receiving 
appreciation from the community for offering such enriching events. This series was made 
possible by a mini-grant through the Altadena Library Foundation 

Chess Night 
Chess Nights remained a popular community event, attracting 16 attendees eager to participate 
in friendly chess matches. 

Huntington Health 
Huntington Health Screening continued this month, with three patrons visiting the RN for health 
check-ups. 

From Page to Table 
From Page to Table was held in the Community Room on February 23rd, with three 
participants in attendance. A crockpot filled with beans and a lemon blueberry drizzle cake 
were shared among the participants. Plans are underway to continue the program, with 
potential adjustments to the day and time to accommodate more participants. 

True Crime All the Time Book Club: 
On February 24th, the True Crime All the Time Book Club convened via Zoom with seven 
attendees. The selected book for Black History Month was "We Carry Their Bones: The Search 
for Justice at the Dozier School for Boys" by Erin Kimmerle. The book, written in memoir style 
by a renowned forensic anthropologist, sheds light on the racial injustices suffered by boys both 
in life and death. 

Page 15 of 138



   
 

   
 

 
 
Family Concert with Mt. Lowe Chamber  
The Mt. Lowe Chamber Players hosted a family concert on the main floor on February 25th, 
attracting an audience of 112 attendees. The program featured kid-friendly selections such as 
"Under the Sea," "Hoedown," and excerpts from Carnival of the Animals, concluding with a 
surprise Star Wars-themed performance. Children actively engaged with the performers, asking 
questions about the instruments and eagerly participating in discussions.  
 
Sip ‘n Poem 
The inaugural Sip 'n Poem event at Callisto Tea House was a memorable evening dedicated to 
poetry and prompts in honor of Black History Month, intertwined with the pleasure of tea. 
Participants were guided through a sensory journey, experiencing African teas, admiring 
impactful Black visual art, and hearing profound lyrics. This multi-sensory experience sparked 
imagery and creativity, reflecting the essence of poetry. 
 
Open Mic Night 
Open Mic Night took place on February 5th, fostering a convivial atmosphere and fostering 
connections among neighbors. 
 
Displays  
 
Black History Month Display 
Throughout February, the library showcased a curated selection of books authored by Black 
writers and focused on Black history as part of the celebration of Black History Month. 
Additionally, profiles of African American Altadena residents sourced from the Altadena 
Historical Society's exhibition, "Interesting Altadenans," were featured. Staff designed special 
buttons commemorating Black History Month, which patrons were encouraged to take. 
 

 
 

Page 16 of 138



   
 

   
 

Blind Date with a Book Display 
In anticipation of Valentine’s Day, the library presented a unique “Blind Date with a Book” 
display. Books spanning various genres were wrapped in butcher paper, each labeled with 
three identifying themes. Patrons were invited to select a wrapped book and were also provided 
with a fillable sheet to review their selection and share their thoughts with staff.  
 

 
 
Got Comments? 
The puppet performance at Christmas time was excellent! I hope you are planning to do more 
puppet shows in the future. Springtime would be great. 
 
We are thrilled to hear that you enjoyed the puppet show with Noteworthy Puppets! We have a 
program for teen on Puppet Making and 2 puppet shows scheduled for the summer! If you 
haven’t done so already, please sign up for our monthly e-blasts. Stay tuned for more 
information on these! 

Page 17 of 138



  
  

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  
YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2024  

   
DEPARTMENT: Youth and Family Services MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Sofia Araya  LOCATION:  Main Library Community Room 
 

 
Children’s Services 
Programs 
February was a fun month with programs! Our reoccurring story times and monthly series, such 
as Pajama Storytime, Curiosity Play Hour, and one-off tween programs continued. This month, 
we had several unique programs including a flower arranging program for tweens and a paper 
mosaic program for families. Youth and Families Services staff also assisted with the Lion 
Dancer program geared for all ages!  
 
Below are some images from February’s events. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18 of 138



 
Valentine’s Day Flower Arranging  

 
 
 

 
 

Paper mosaic program. 

 
 

Families during Curiosity Play Hour. 
                                                    

Page 19 of 138



Displays  
This month the Children’s area displayed books celebrating 
Black History Month, Valentine’s Day, and Lunar New Year! We 
also highlighted ALA Youth Medal award winning books. We had 
books displayed above the children’s picture bookshelves. In the 
Children’s Room Glass Display Case, staff created a display all 
about 1000 Books Before Kindergarten. The different incentive 
prizes are shown and patrons can scan a QR code to Beanstack 
in order to create an account or to register for the program! 

Page 20 of 138



YFS February displays. 
 
Outreach and School Visits 
The Youth and Family Services department attended different community outreach events this 
month. Staff attended the USC Pacific American Museum’s Lunar New Year event. This event 
was a hit. Our YFS Librarian did a storytime and staff engaged with community members with 
different art activities at the table. YFS staff also participated in Madison Elementary’s Science 
Night. We attended the Black Education Expo on February 24. We provided information flyers 
and gave free books written by black authors, or with black characters. Lastly, Assistant Director 
Ashley Watts and the YFS Manager attended Jackson Elementary’s Chocolate Storytime in 
celebration of Black History Month. We read stories to the students. Overall, it was so great to 
engage with different community members and tell them all about our services.  
 
In preparation for the 1000 Books Before Kindergarten Launch Party (held on March 2nd), YFS 
Manager connected with local preschools and daycares to provide information to families about 
our event and about our early learning services. We connected with Rayuela School, Families 
Forward Learning Center, and both of the local Oak Knoll Montessori locations. We provided a 
branded tote bag with a bilingual book, information about 1000 Books Before Kindergarten, and 
our upcoming events flyer.  
 
Two schools visited the library this month, including Waldorf School and Sahag-Mesrob 
Armenian Christian School with a total of 51 students and staff visiting! 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21 of 138



 

YFS February outreach images. 
 
 
Teen Services 
Programs 
There were several engaging and fun programs for teens this month! These programs included: 
Teens! Take Up Space!, Teen Stop Motion Animation and Teen Poetry Club,  
 
Teen Leadership Council (TLC) is a little different starting this year. TLC will now be a quarterly 
cohort with a more intentional goal of completing a project with the teens. A total of 11 teens 
attended this first Spring Cohort Meeting. It was a really wonderful experience for teens to 
socialize with each other through food and icebreakers. They were able to share out their ideas 
about challenges they face as teens, what matters to them, and what potential programs they 
would like to do. The top two things that matter to this group of teens were the future and 
money. Collectively, as a group, they decided to do a mental health focused art activity (possibly 
3 different stations) in the Teen Space – it would be for April 16.  
 
Below are some images of the programs! 

Teens Take Up Space attendee decorating the Teen Space. 
 

Page 22 of 138



 
Teen Stop Motion Animation program.  

 
Outreach 
Our partnerships with the local high schools have continued. This month our Teen Librarian has 
attended Wellness Wednesday at both John Muir and Pasadena High Schools. They lead a 
Visions Board program at Pasadena High School and led a Visions Board program at Five 
Acres. We are especially excited to build a partnership with Five Acres as part of our 
organizational goal.  
 
 

 
Teens during the PHS Vision Board program. 

 

Page 23 of 138



 
Five Acres Vision Board program. 

 
Displays 
 
This month the Teen Space had a display created 
during the Teens Take Up Space program. The 
display was to highlight books for Black History Month. 
“#ReadBlack” pins were created by our Teen Librarian 
and left out in the Teen Space for teens to take home 
with them.  
 

 
                                             February display in the 

Teen Space. 
 

Page 24 of 138



   
  

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  
BOB LUCAS BRANCH REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2024  

   
DEPARTMENT: Bob Lucas Branch  MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024  
PREPARED BY: Diana Wong  LOCATION:Main Library Community Room 

 
 
BOB LUCAS LIBRARY & LITERACY UPDATES 
 
Bob Lucas branch from offered 9 programs for the community, and installed displays 
celebrating Black History and Women’s History. Staff also picked up the pace on 
preparing for the Bob Lucas renovations by taking stock of our collections, supplies, and 
everything inside the building so we can be ready for APRIL! We are so excited for the 
groundbreaking, and the Friends of the Altadena Library Book Sale at BL! 
 

• Our monthly Seasonal Crafts was well-attended this month, bringing in nearly 
30 people into our intimate communal space. Families and children enjoyed  the 
craft and opening presentation centered on the lunar new year. Our young 
patrons created their dragon mask, selecting their own materials and making 
their own color choices. 

 

 
 

• Our Family Storytimes at BL and Loma Alta Park served 119 people this 
month! Our indoor programming is regularly attended by babies and toddlers who 
so very much enjoy the playtime after we share stories. It is so nice partnering 
with LA County Parks and Rec who have been so welcoming to us as we make 
off-site programming available that is not too from the branch. This partnership is 
especially important to us as it allows ALD to continue offering programming to 
the westside after we close for renovations.   

Page 25 of 138



 
• Our partnership with Plant Material is another strong collaboration that allows 

programming to be made available while BL is undergoing construction. We host 
the ever-popular Adult Craft program at the native plant nursery, and we see 
consistent attendance at these monthly gatherings. In February, crafters made 
and took home a set of clay coasters!   

 
• Every spring semester, we see Odyssey kindergarteners visit the Bob Lucas 

branch. Ms. Takahashi’s and Ms. Chavez’s students made their way down this 
month for a story and to checkout books. These walking field trips to the library 
often make quite the impression on the kindergarteners, as many of them return 
to the library with their parents following their walking fieldtrip so they can sign up 
for a library card and check out more books. 

 

 
 

• We put up 3 displays this month: Black History Month, Women’s History Month 
and Blind Date with Book for Valentine’s Day. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 26 of 138



Adult Literacy  
 

• We held our quarterly Tutor-Meet up this month to review updates, share 
teaching strategies, and welcome a new tutor! A big thanks to one of our 
dedicated tutors who led a session on incorporating imagery into lessons to help 
build vocabulary and increase speaking for ESL learners.  
 
During this meet-up, we also updated our tutors about the timeline for the 
renovations. While BL space will not be available for about a year starting in 
April, Adult Literacy Services will continue to operate and be made available for 
new participants to join.  Our tutors and learners are arranging to continue 
meeting regularly and will either use Main branch space, classrooms offered by 
the Seventh Day Adventist Church, or virtually for tutoring session. ESL will 
continue to be offered at the Seventh Day Adventist Church Monday-Thursday 
mornings.  
 

 

Page 27 of 138



 
 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
I.T. & TECHNICAL SERVICES REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2024 

  
DEPARTMENT: IT & Technical Services MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: David Zearbaugh LOCATION:  Main Library Community Room 

 
• Library of Things and Kits!  

o The Technical Services Team has been busy working on new kits and Library of 
Things items. We recently completed and made them available to the public. 
 5 Yoto Players 

• For those who don’t know, 
Yoto Players are screen-
free audio platform 
designed specifically for 
children, using physical 
cards to play curated 
stories, music, and other 
content. 

 
 15 Lovevery Kits – Pictured is 

“The thinker : 11-12 months”  
 

• PCI & DSS Training 
o All Staff completed our Annual Training to 

ensure Payment Card Industry (PCI) and 
Data Security Standard (DSS) 
compliance. This is one of the many 
trainings we have created and offer staff 
in Niche Academy. 

 
• Email Security Audit 

o In February, IT Services initiated another round of attack simulation to all ALD 
staff. The results are listed below:  

o Out of 34 emails sent to staff, 2 links were clicked.  
o We had a 35.29% Report Rate.    
o 5.88% Compromise Rate with 2 user compromised. Training was assigned and 

completed within the deadline. 
o While these results were not ideal, this one was tough and resembled real life 

emails from Microsoft. We do require staff to attend trainings for each of the 
clicks or “compromises” that may occur. It allows us to use this opportunity as a 
teaching moment of what has the potential to happen so they are more aware 

Page 28 of 138



and cautious in the future. We also discuss the results at our All Staff Meetings in 
order to share information about the risks and educate our staff on what to look 
out for.  

• On a personal note from David...
o Zoe turned 1 in February! I can’t believe it’s already been a year. Here are a few

pictures from her birthday party.

Page 29 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
FACILITIES REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2024 

DEPARTMENT: Facilities MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION:  Main Library Community Room 

Facilities Manager Recruitment 
The District opened recruitment for a Facilities Manager in mid-January. Applications were 
reviewed and 7 candidates were invited to interview on March 6 with an external panel, and two 
candidates were invited to a second interview with internal managers on March 12. It was 
determined that the District will continue the recruitment process to select the most qualified 
candidate for the position. The new first review date is April 15.  

Roofing Update 
On February 21, the roof was repaired by Roof Repair Specialists. There was a coincidentally a 
kcal 9 news crew shooting a segment regarding damage from the rains, and the library was 
featured.  

Tree Trimming  
Annual Tree Trimming service occurred on Sunday, March 10. 

Custodial Services 
Verde Cleaning has established a system for ensuring the cleaning of the District interiors is up 
to standard.  The are in close communication to ensure cleaning is meeting standards for the 
District. 

Elevator 
The elevator at Main was repaired on March 5, and the necessary state permit was received on 
March 18. The elevator is now in compliance with state regulation. 

Second Van Update 
The installation of shelving and liftgate on the new van is delayed. The installation vendors 
noted there is an issue with the computer in the lift gate. They will need to have someone 
assess solutions. This has been prioritized and updates are forthcoming. 

HVAC Repairs 
Allison Mechanical performed preventative maintenance at the Bob Lucas Library on Tuesday, 
2/27, and at the Main Library on Wednesday, 2/28. 

Page 30 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  
FREINDS OF THE ALTADENA LIBRARY REPORT 

REPORT: FOAL MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Tom Ruffner LOCATION:  Main Library Community Room 

The Friends will participate in the Bob Lucas book sale April 12 & 13. 

The Friends two-day book sale is scheduled for May 18 & 19. 

The Friends with host its Annual Meeting on June 4 in the library Community Room @ 6:00pm. 
The Board is invited to celebrate with us! 

Page 31 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE FOR MARCH 2024 

DEPARTMENT: Administration MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow & Ashley Watts 
 

LOCATION: Main Library Community Room 

Staffing Updates: 
a) New Hires: None
b) Promotions: None
c) Resignations/Retirements/Terminations: Shawnee Downing – Library Clerk – March 30, 2024

We got the bittersweet news that our part-time Library Clerk 
Shawnee Downing has resigned from her position with ALD. 
Shawnee began working for the District in April 2021 as a Library 
Aide. She played an invaluable role in training new aides and 
keeping our library shelves in tip-top shape. In March 2023, 
Shawnee was happily promoted to Library Clerk, with an emphasis 
on events and programming. During this past year, Shawnee has 
worked countless outreach events and has assisted both branches 
with programming needs. She's been such a big help, especially 
since we've seen an increase in ALD's presence in the community.  
The Temple City School District is lucky to have her as a Library 
Media Specialist – we will miss her as an ALD team member! 

We also have our recruitment for the Facilities Manager currently 
taking place.  We are in the process of reviewing applications we 
have received and will be scheduling an external interview panel in 

the next few weeks.  Based on the outcome of those interviews, the next round with top candidates 
shortly after.  I am hopeful we will have selected a new Facilities Manager by the March Board 
meeting. 

Marketing Update: 
This month we posted the history of the Bob Lucas Library video on social media/YouTube and 
shared the closing date and groundbreaking for the renovations. We created a small ad campaign 
for the video, which has received more than 3,300 views (IG/YT) to date. To watch the video, go to 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=B5-O7l9dIVY. 

The next video in the series is underway and will share design highlights of the Bob Lucas Library 
renovations, inspiring artwork by Keni Arts, the timeline of the project, and important dates.  

Design boards and one-sheets have been updated and distributed for both building projects. 

In honor of National Library Week (April 7-13), we created a trifold brochure highlighting all of the 
programs planned by library staff. We also created a Taste of ‘Dena “save the date” postcard 
template for the Altadena Library Foundation.A banner for the Main Library, a banner for the Bob 

Page 32 of 138

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=B5-O7l9dIVY


Lucas Library, and yard signs highlighting the closing date, Friends of the Altadena Library Book 
Sale at Bob, and the groundbreaking have been created and are being printed. All items should be 
complete and posted by March 23. Groundbreaking invites, news release, and direct mailer are in 
the works. 

We shared several May events and the June 1 summer reading kickoff event with Altadena 
Neighbors magazine for the May issue, and the story about our Altadena Poets Laureate should be 
published in the April issue.

Altadena Library Foundation 2024 Kickoff Event 
Our wonderful ALF support group had their first event of the year on Friday, March 1st.  It was hosted 
at a beautiful home in east Altadena.  Although they expected a good turnout out, it was a happy 
surprise to see the almost 60 attendees that showed up to support the work of the ALF.  Thanks to 
Brin Wall for creating two updated promotional boards for the upcoming library renovations and one-
sheets with information about the two building projects.  ALF President Mark Mariscal also 
recognized and thanked past ALF Directors Bridget Brewster and Renee Hines for their many years 
of service and he presented ALD with another $15,000 check from the ALF.  We also were 
entertained by the beautiful music of up-and-coming artist Rae Isla.  What a fabulous time! 

Page 33 of 138



Altadena Chamber of Commerce 
The Altadena Chamber of Commerce hosted Dr. Silvia Gates-
Carlisle, MD, MPH, FACP to give a presentation on Alzheimer’s, 
as part of their 2024 speaker series. Ashley and other members 
of the Member Services Committee assisted with facilitating this 
Zoom webinar. Be on the lookout for more speakers throughout 
2024! The next one is set for April 11th and it’s called “Educating 
Our Business  
Owners on Accessing Capital and Financial Options.” 

Pasadena Literary Alliance Festival of Women Authors 
Nikki was again invited to the annual Festival of Women 
Authors by the Chair of the Pasadena Literary Alliance.  They 
ended up having a couple of extra tickets as well, so Bridget 
Brewster and Catalina Theodoros were able to use these last 
minute seats as well.  It was an impressive slate of authors as 
usual, and it was great to get to speak to them and have them 
sign their books that we purchased.  We highly recommend this 
event in the future! 

Chocolate Storytime at Jackson Elementary School 
The African American Parent Council hosted a Chocolate 
Storytime in celebration of Black History Month! Ashley read 
books to 2 classrooms and was able to meet members of the 
AAPC in hopes of collaborating in future projects! Youth and 
Family Services Manager Sofia Araya was also in attendance. 

The Rotary Club of Altadena 
For Read Across America, Ashley joined other Rotarians to read 
to classrooms at Families Forward Learning Center. Ashley 
donned a Dr. Seuss hat to read books, sing songs, and play 
outside with the little ones!       

Look Who’s Using the Community Room! 
On March 5th, we had our first storytime with Petite 
Library in Arabic! They also offered a Korean and a 
French storytime this month and the partnership will 
continue through May. Aside from this partnership, 
Petite library will use the Community Room for 
rehearsals for their upcoming play that will debut to the 
students’ families and be offered as a library program 
to our patrons in April.  

Page 34 of 138



On a personal note from Nikki… 

It’s that crazy time of year again for the Winslow household!  Anyone that knows me knows that I go 
MAD for March Madness and that is definitely the case again this year!  My beloved Arizona 
Wildcats are currently ranked #6 in the US and secured a #2 seed in the big NCAA Tournament, 
which I will be watching intently with family and friends in Las Vegas during the first weekend (which 
will be the previous weekend when this Board meeting is happening).  My sister Kim is also flying in 
from Ohio with my niece Lily so we’ll be able to catch up and spend the weekend together as well.  
Please send positive thoughts into the universe for my fabulous Wildcats! 

Here is a photo of my daughter Alyssa, son Landon, and myself watching Arizona play back in 
December and then another one from last Thursday when I watched them beat the USC Trojans in 
the PAC-12 tournament. 

Page 35 of 138



On a personal note from Ashley… 

I had the pleasure of attending the Youth and Family Services Early Literacy Launch event with my 
little Austin, my sister Amber, and her 2-year-old daughter Haylee. We enjoyed a great storytime, 
had a chance to meet Curious George, and enjoyed the fellowship in the Children’s Room. Kudos to 
the YFS department for hosting such a wonderful event! 

On another note, I finally made it to the Santa Monica pier! It’s been on my bucket list since I moved 
to California and I can’t wait to go again! I rode the Ferris wheel, had funnel cake, and watched the 
ocean waves! 

Page 36 of 138



Statistical Update 
FY22-23 and FY23-24 Comparison – Page 1 of 2 

Page 37 of 138



Statistical Update 
FY22-23 and FY23-24 Comparison – Page 2 of 2 

Page 38 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  
FINANCE REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2024 

DEPARTMENT: Administration  MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION: Main Library Community Room 

TITLE: Summary Report of Financial Statements for February 2024  

FEBRUARY 2024 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The following financial reports include unaudited statements for the month ended February 29, 2024. 
The District is currently at 67% of the 2023-24 budget year. 

The General Fund Budget to Actual report presents $4,482,154 of revenue and $3,083,360 of 
expenses, adding $1,398,793 to operating reserves to date.  

The Balance Sheet presents total assets of $37,274,798. 

Total cash and investments are $30,962,824, of which $25,897,542 represents bond proceeds and 
grant funds restricted for the library renovation project and invested with U.S. Bank and the 
Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (CLASS) fund.  

The combined total of General Funds held with CLASS, Los Angeles County, and Checking is 
$4,557,026. The District reserve requirement of 50% of the operating expense budget is $2,336,550. 

REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS 
See Variance Report for details on the revenue. 

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 
See Variance Report for details on the expenditures. 

DONATIONS & GRANT FUND HIGHLIGHTS 
See Variance Report for details on the expenditures. 

CAPITAL FUND HIGHLIGHTS 
None. 

Page 39 of 138



Budget to Actual (Unaudited)
General Fund

For the Period July 1, 2023 to February 29, 2024

A B C D = B/C

 February
2024 

 YTD 
 FY 2023/24 

Adopted 
Budget 

 YTD
Target

67% 

1 REVENUE
2 Property Taxes & Assessments (3,515)$   4,302,463$   4,483,600$   96%
3 Library Fees 6,925  44,904  67,000  67%
4 Grant Reimbursements - 4,480 8,000  56%
5 Interest Income 17,147  121,111 173,000  70%
6 Other Revenue - 9,196 41,500  22%
7 TOTAL REVENUE 20,558  4,482,154  4,773,100  94%

8 EXPENSES
9 Salaries & Benefits
10 Wages
11 Salaried 120,046  904,995  1,262,400  72%
12 Hourly 65,246  577,749  902,500  64%
13 Total Wages 185,292  1,482,743  2,164,900  68%

14 Benefits, Retirement & Taxes
15 Health and Other Medical Insurance - Employees 19,993  143,142  206,700  69%
16 Health Insurance - Retirees 6,636  50,298  76,300  66%
17 Workers' Compensation - 15,520 15,000  103%
18 Payroll Taxes (District-Paid) 15,095  117,336 173,000  68%
19 CalPERS Retirement (Normal Costs) 12,285  95,715 193,900  49%
20 CalPERS UAL Minimum Payment - 214,434 214,500  100%
21 CalPERS UAL Discretionary Payment - - 225,000  0%
22 Total Benefits, Retirement & Taxes 54,009  636,445  1,104,400  58%

23 Total Salaries & Benefits 239,302  2,119,189  3,269,300  65%

24 Operating Expenses
25 Insurance 143  177,017  178,000  99%
26 Utilities 6,294  52,649  84,500  62%
27 County Tax Collection Fees - 42,981 41,700  103%
28 Other Operating 2,337  58,168 79,900  73%
29 Facilities, Grounds & Maintenance 9,958  76,281 110,800  69%
30 Structures & Improvements -  -  10,000  0%
31 Vehicles & Equipment Maintenance 849  3,288 5,000  66%
32 Staff Development, Training & Travel 1,656  22,168 34,700  64%
33 Advertising & Marketing 5,431  16,582 27,500  60%
34 Miscellaneous Expenses 765  6,131 8,000  77%
35 Total Operating Expenses 27,431  455,265  580,100  78%

36 Professional Services
37 Audit & Financial Consulting 10,732  86,377  132,300  65%
38 Legal Fees 1,799  6,460  15,000  43%
39 Consultants - Other 3,771  52,273  90,000  58%
40 Total Professional Services 16,302$   145,110$   237,300$   61%

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Financials do not include a statement of cash flows.  Substantially all disclosures required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included.

Page 40 of 138



Budget to Actual (Unaudited)
General Fund

For the Period July 1, 2023 to February 29, 2024

A B C D = B/C

 February
2024 

 YTD 
 FY 2023/24 

Adopted 
Budget 

 YTD
Target

67% 

41 Information Technology (IT)
42 Internet Service / E-Rate -$  10,829$   48,600$   22%
43 Technology Equipment 16,886  44,226  56,000  79%
44 Technology Maintenance Fees 205  50,212  68,900  73%
45 Telecommunications 1,310  8,347  16,000  52%
46 Total Information Technology (IT) 18,401  113,614  189,500  60%

47 Library Materials
48 Books 1,402  65,020  110,000  59%
49 Downloadables 11,107  56,176  84,100  67%
50 DVDs & Videogames 352  8,580  14,600  59%
51 Electronic Databases / Subscriptions 1,330  12,192  29,000  42%
52 Periodicals 8,404  15,477  10,000  155%
53 Audio CD 32  3,464  9,100  38%
54 Purchase Suggestions 2,173  9,700  14,000  69%
55 Library of Things 606  2,776  12,600  22%
56 Mobile Library Collection -  -  12,500  0%
57 Total Library Materials 25,405  173,386  295,900  59%

58 Programs
59 Adult Services 1,983  23,427  35,000  67%
60 Teen Services 783  2,842  5,500  52%
61 Youth Services 1,969  8,307  10,000  83%
62 Summer Reading 433  2,627  11,000  24%
63 Bob Lucas Branch Services 225  4,830  5,500  88%
64 Literacy Services -  -  800  0%
65 Volunteer Services - 240 200  120%
66 Outreach Services 1,247  3,928 15,000  26%
67 All Ages 1,600  2,581 6,000  43%
68 Total Programs 8,240  48,782  89,000  55%

69 Capital Expenditures - District Funded
70 Building Projects Legal Fees 16,296  28,017  12,000  233%
71 Total Capital Expneditures - District Funded 16,296  28,017  12,000  233%

72 TOTAL EXPENSES 351,376  3,083,360  4,673,100  66%

73 NET REVENUE / (EXPENSES) (330,819)  1,398,793  100,000  

74 Use Of / (Addition To) Reserves / Fund Balance 330,819  (1,398,793)  (100,000)  

75 NET BALANCE -$  -$  -$   

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Financials do not include a statement of cash flows.  Substantially all disclosures required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included.

Page 41 of 138



Budget to Actual (Unaudited)
Donations / Grants Fund

For the Period July 1, 2023 to February 29, 2024

A B C D E F G =E/F

 Altadena 
Library 

Foundation 

 Friends of 
Altadena 
Library 

 Califa (Stay 
and Play) 

 California 
Library 
Grants 

 Total 
 FY 2023/24 

Adopted 
Budget 

 YTD
Target

67% 

1 REVENUE
2 Donations & Grants
3 Altadena Library Foundation 37,500$   -$  -$  -$  37,500$    50,900$    74%
4 Friends of the Library - 20,000 - -  20,000   20,000   100%
5 Califa Stay and Play -  -  4,500  - 4,500  4,500   100%
6 California State Library Literacy Services -  -  -  34,889  34,889   37,350   93%
7 California State Library Facilities & Equipment -  -  -  192,947  192,947   193,000   100%
8 California State Library Lunch at the Library -  -  -  -  - 46,750  0%
9 California State Library Zip Books -  -  -  3,087  3,087   3,100   100%
10 Total Donations & Grants 37,500  20,000  4,500  230,923  292,923   355,600   82%

11 TOTAL REVENUE 37,500  20,000  4,500  230,923  292,923   355,600   82%

12 EXPENSES
13 Wages
14 Salaried -  -  -  15,648  15,648   23,600   66%
15 Hourly -  -  -  7,630  7,630   12,000   64%
16 Total Wages -  -  -  23,278  23,278   35,600   65%

17 Operating Expenses
18 Staff Recognition - 2,385 -  -  2,385   6,000   40%
19 Staff Development, Training & Travel - 1,438 -  -  1,438   3,500   41%
20 Equipment, Furniture & Fixtures - - -  182,638  182,638   183,100   100%
21 Vending Machine Supplies - - -  2,056  2,056   1,800   114%
22 Total Operating Expenses - 3,823 - 184,693 188,517   194,400   96%

23 Programs and Materials
24 Adult Services 3,111  4,587  -  -  7,697   28,000   27%
25 Teen Services 35  257  -  -  292   1,700   17%
26 Youth Services 4,898  35  3,512  - 8,445  10,000   84%
27 Summer Reading - 389 -  -  389  2,000   19%
28 Bob Lucas Branch Services -  -  -  -  - 300  0%
29 Literacy Services -  -  -  1,684  1,684  1,750   96%
30 Poets Laureate 2,357  2,263  -  -  4,620  5,000   92%
31 Ode to the Land 1,382  -  -  -  1,382  10,000   14%
32 Stay and Play -  -  -  -  - 4,500  0%
33 Purchase Suggestions -  -  -  3,087  3,087  3,100   100%
34 Lunch at the Library -  -  -  150  150  46,750   0%
35 Library of Things 3,409  -  -  -  3,409  3,400   100%
36 Mobile Library Collection/Seed Library -  -  -  -  - 1,000  0%
37 Total Programs and Materials 15,191  7,531  3,512  4,921  31,155   117,500   27%

38 Information Technology (IT)
39 Website Development -  -  -  7,379  7,379   8,100   91%
40 Total Information Technology (IT) -  -  -  7,379  7,379   8,100   91%

41 TOTAL EXPENSES 15,191  11,354  3,512  220,271  250,328   355,600   70%

42 NET REVENUE / (EXPENSES)  $  22,309  $  8,646  $  988  $  10,653  $  42,595 -$   

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Financials do not include a statement of cash flows.  Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States not included.

Page 42 of 138



Budget to Actual (Unaudited)
Capital Fund

For the Period July 1, 2023 to February 29, 2024

A B C D = B/C

 February
2024 

 YTD 
 FY 2023/24 

Adopted 
Budget 

 YTD
Target

67% 

1 REVENUE
2 Interest Income 28,509  238,426  327,000  73%
3 TOTAL REVENUE 28,509  238,426  327,000  73%

4 EXPENSES
5 CFD Bond
6 Project Management 16,388  73,359  130,000  56%
7 Contingencies -  -  192,000  0%
8 Total CFD Bond 16,388  73,359  322,000  23%

9 Capital Project Expenses
10 Bob Lucas Memorial Library 22,643  149,208  840,000  18%
11 Main Library 45,286  298,416  680,000  44%
12 Total Capital Project Expenses 67,929  447,624  1,520,000  29%

13 TOTAL EXPENSES 84,316  520,983  1,842,000  28%

14 NET REVENUE / (EXPENSES) (55,807)  (282,557)$   (1,515,000)$       19%

15 Use Of (Addition To) Bond Proceeds 55,807  282,557   1,515,000          19%
16 NET BALANCE -$  -$  -$   

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Financials do not include a statement of cash flows.  Substantially all disclosures required by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included.

Page 43 of 138



Building Projects 
March 1, 2022 through February 29, 2024

A B C D= A+B+C
 FY22  FY 23 FY24  Total 

1 Capital Revenue
2 Measure Z Bond Net Proceeds 22,940,593$   (11)$  -$  22,940,582$   
3 Grant Proceeds 3,789,833  - 3,789,833 
4 District Funding from General Fund 28,017  28,017  
5 Interest Income (16,947)  230,437  238,426  451,916  
6 Unrealized Gain/(Loss) (157,458)  100,705  244,251  187,498  
7 Net Proceeds 22,766,188  4,120,963  510,694  27,397,845  

8 Administrative CFD Costs
9 Administration (29,189)  -  -  (29,189)  
10 Salaries and Financial Consulting (12,835)  (5,861)  (4,480)  (23,176)  
11 Total Administrative Costs (42,024)  (5,861)  (4,480)  (52,365)  

12 Direct Renovation Costs
13 Project Management (126,330)  (89,190)  (73,359)  (288,879)  
14 Plan Check / Permits (11,889)  (26,760)  (31,676)  (70,325)  
15 Studies (86,062)  (23,528)  (33,487)  (143,077)  
16 Architect and Design (185,281)  (357,257)  (377,040)  (919,578)  
17 Legal Fees (703) (1,021) (28,959)  (30,683)  
18 Total Direct Renovation Costs (410,265)  (497,756)  (544,520)  (1,452,541)  

19 Net Activity 22,313,900  3,617,346  (38,307)  25,892,939  

20 Capital Fund Ending Balance 22,313,900$   25,931,246$   25,892,939$   25,892,939$   

21 Bond Proceeds Balance 22,313,900$   22,128,824$   22,032,336$   22,032,336$   

22 Grant Proceeds Balance -$  3,802,422$   3,860,603$   3,860,603$   

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Financials do not include a statement of cash flows.  Substantially all disclosures required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States not included.

Page 44 of 138



Balance Sheet (Unaudited)
District Total

As of February 29, 2024

1 ASSETS
2 Cash & Investments
3 Cash - Los Angeles County 1,036,881$   
4 Checking 311,505  
5 Special Tax Bonds 22,408,506  

6 CLASS - General 3,208,640  
7 CLASS - CA State Library Building Forward 3,860,603  
8 CLASS - Capital Projects 138,483  
9 CLASS - FMV (1,794)  
10 Total Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System Investments 7,205,932  

11 Total Cash & Investments 30,962,824  

12 Other Current Assets
13 Prepaid Items and Deposits 14,019  
14 Prepaid Insurance and Surety Bond 136,500  
15 Property Tax and Assessments Receivable 2,391,138  
16 Miscellaneous Receivable 66,037  
17 Total Other Current Assets 2,607,694   

18 Long-Term Assets
19 Fixed Assets (Net of Depreciation) 1,866,825  
20 Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,837,454  
21 Total Long-Term Assets 3,704,279   

22 TOTAL ASSETS 37,274,798  

23 LIABILITIES
24 Current Liabilities
25 Accounts Payable 52,178  
26 Credit Card Payable 22,015  
27 Deferred Revenue 3,728,271  
28 Total Current Liabilities 3,802,464   

29 Long-Term Liabilities
30 Vacation Payable 121,348  
31 Deferred Inflows of Resources 677,610  
32 Net Pension Liability 3,176,520  
33 Net OPEB Liability 1,252,560  
34 Community Facilities District Bond Payable 23,643,560  
35 Total Long-Term Liabilities 28,871,598  

36 TOTAL LIABILITIES 32,674,062  

37 FUND BALANCE
38 Fund Balance 2,422,230  
39 Net Revenue / (Expenses) 2,178,505  

40 TOTAL FUND BALANCE 4,600,736  

41 TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 37,274,798$        

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Financials do not include a statement of cash flows.  Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States not included.

Page 45 of 138



Altadena Library District 
Monthly Variance Analysis 

February 2024 – 67% Year to Date (YTD) 

General Fund Budget to Actual 

Revenue 

Line 2 – Property Taxes & Assessments include Ad Valorem tax revenue and a redevelopment tax 
levied by Los Angeles County in December.  Minor adjustments will be presented throughout the 
year.  YTD is trending over budget at 96% due to the majority of property tax assessments recorded 
for the year.  

Line 3 – Library Fees include printing fees, video game rentals, community room fees, and passport 
services.  YTD is trending in line with budget.  

Line 4 – Grant Reimbursements includes funding from the California State Library Building 
Forward grant for salaries and benefits.  YTD is trending under budget at 56% due to 
reimbursements reported on a quarterly basis.  YTD includes activity through the quarter ended 
December 31, 2023. 

Line 5 - Interest Income includes earnings from cash and investments held with the County of Los 
Angeles and the California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System investment account (CLASS). 
YTD is trending over budget at 70% due to higher earnings than anticipated in the budget.  

Line 6 – Other Revenue is generated from film rentals, e-rate reimbursement (internet), credit card 
rebates, and other miscellaneous revenue.  YTD is trending under budget at 22% due to revenue that 
will be generated and recorded at the end of the fiscal year.  

Expenses 

Line 11 - Salaried includes employee wages and an annual wellness stipend for salaried employees, 
less a small portion funded from donations and grants.  YTD is trending over budget at 72% due to 
employee payouts for unused leave balances.   

Line 12 – Hourly includes employee wages and an annual wellness stipend for hourly employees, 
less a small portion funded for donations and grants.  YTD is trending in line with budget.  

Line 15 – Health and Other Medical Insurance - Employees include the District’s contribution 
toward health benefits for full-time employees.  The total contribution from the District for health 
and other medical insurance is $1,100 per month per full-time employee.  YTD is trending in line with 
budget.  

Line 16 – Health Insurance - Retirees include health benefits for retired employees.  YTD is 
trending in line with budget.  

Line 17 – Workers’ Compensation insurance based on employee wages by risk category and is 
paid in full at the beginning of the fiscal year.  YTD is over budget due to the year-end insurance 
audit/reconciliation received after the approved budget. 

Page 46 of 138



Altadena Library District 
Monthly Variance Analysis 

February 2024 – 67% Year to Date (YTD) 

Line 18 – Payroll Taxes (District-Paid) includes the District’s portion of federal and state taxes. 
YTD is trending in line with budget.  

Line 19 - CalPERS Retirement (Normal Costs) is the District’s portion of employee retirement 
costs.  YTD is trending under budget at 49% due to enrollment of an employee for prior periods 
which will be recorded in March.   

Line 20 – CalPERS UAL Minimum Payment is the annual required payment toward the unfunded 
accrued liability.  This is paid in full at the beginning of the fiscal year to take advantage of a 3% 
discount.  YTD is in line with budget. 

Line 21 – CalPERS UAL Discretionary Payment is a voluntary payment to CalPERS to reduce the 
unfunded accrued liability of approximately $2.1 M.  Budget performance will be analyzed at year-
end to determine funding.  There is no YTD activity.  

Line 25 – Insurance includes property, liability, earthquake and other types of insurance paid in 
full at the beginning of the fiscal year.  YTD is trending over budget due to premium payments made 
at the beginning of the year. 

Line 26 – Utilities include electricity, gas, and water for the main library and the Bob Lucas branch. 
YTD is trending under budget at 62% due to lower gas bills than anticipated.  

Line 27 – County Tax Collection Fees are paid to the County at approximately 1% of property 
taxes collected in Line 2.  Fees will be recorded as taxes are collected in the second half of the fiscal 
year.  YTD is over budget pending the reallocation of fees related to the Community Facilities 
District special tax assessment. 

Line 28 – Other Operating includes membership dues & subscriptions, postage, printing, supplies, 
software, and non-capitalized office equipment.  YTD is trending over budget at 73% due to LAFCO 
dues and the CSDA membership paid in full at the beginning of the fiscal year.  

Line 29 – Facilities, Grounds & Maintenance includes maintenance contracts, building 
maintenance and repairs, and landscaping services.  YTD is trending in line with budget.  

Line 30 – Structures & Improvements includes emergency funds for unanticipated expenses. 
There is no YTD activity.  

Line 31 – Vehicles & Equipment Maintenance includes operating costs of mobile library van, 
vending machine, and other equipment. Appropriate expenses include car washes, gas, fan, hot 
spots, vending machine internet, etc.  YTD is trending in line with budget. 

Line 32 – Staff Development, Training & Travel is budgeted for staff conferences, training, and 
related expenses.  YTD is trending in line with budget.     

Line 33 – Advertising & Marketing includes general marketing for the District.  YTD is trending 
under budget at 60% due to the timing of informational mailers. 

Page 47 of 138



Altadena Library District 
Monthly Variance Analysis 

February 2024 – 67% Year to Date (YTD) 

Line 34 – Miscellaneous Expenses includes banking, payroll processing and timekeeping, and 
miscellaneous expenses not accounted for in other lines.  YTD is trending over budget at 77% due 
to the timing of processing fees and additional bank wire fees.   

Line 37 – Audit & Financial Consulting includes external consulting services and annual audit 
services.  YTD is trending in line with budget. 

Line 38 – Legal Fees are for general District matters.  YTD is trending under budget at 43% due to 
less legal services than anticipated.  

Line 39 – Consultants - Other includes consulting services for information technology (IT), human 
resources, and miscellaneous services.  YTD is trending under budget at 58% due to the timing of 
human resource services.  

Line 42 – Internet Service / E-Rate includes the total cost of providing internet service to the 
main library and the Bob Lucas branch.  The majority of expenses are recorded quarterly, and the e-
rate reimbursement is recorded separately in Other Revenue.  YTD is trending under budget at 22% 
due to the delay in quarterly invoicing. YTD includes expenses incurred through September 30th.  

Line 43 – Technology Equipment includes office computers and misc. equipment. YTD is trending 
over budget at 79% due to the replacement of staff computers.  

Line 44 – Technology Maintenance Fees includes maintenance contracts for a printer, copier, and 
multi-functional machines.  YTD is trending over budget at 73% due to annual contract renewals 
paid at the beginning of the year. 

Line 45 - Telecommunications include phone charges for the main library and the Bob Lucas 
branch.  YTD is trending under budget at 52% due to lower monthly bills than anticipated.  

Lines 48 - 56 – Library Materials include items available for library members such as: books, 
downloadables, DVDs, videogames, electronic databases, periodicals, audio CDs, purchase 
suggestions from members, Library of Things, and the mobile library collection – seed library.  
Total Library material expenses are trending under budget at 59% due to the timing of Mobile 
Library purchases.  

Lines 59 – 67 – Programs includes program costs for adult, teen, and youth services. It also 
supports the Summer Reading program, programs for the Bob Lucas Branch, literacy services, 
outreach services, and volunteer services.  Total program expenses are trending under budget at 
55% due to the timing of program services and events.  

Line 70 – Building Projects Legal Fees includes legal fees for the building projects, not funded by 
bond proceeds.  YTD is over budget due to higher than anticipated legal services. 

Line 73 - Net Revenue / (Expenses) is the year-to-date use of or (addition to) Operating Reserves. 
YTD is an addition to reserves of $1,398,793 due to the property tax assessments recorded for the 
majority of the year. This will fluctuate throughout the year based on the timing of revenue and 
expenses. 

Page 48 of 138



Altadena Library District 
Monthly Variance Analysis 

February 2024 – 67% Year to Date (YTD) 

Donations / Grants Budget to Actual 

Revenue 

Line 3 – Altadena Library Foundation includes a grant to support operating and program 
services.  Additional funds are anticipated to be received in the Spring.  

Line 4 – Friends of the Library includes a grant to support operating and program services.  Total 
funds were received. 

Line 5 – Califa Stay and Play includes support for outreach and programming for informal 
caregivers and the children in their care.  Total funds were received. 

Line 6 - California Library Literary Services include annual grant funding to support literacy 
programs and English as a second language services.  Additional funds are anticipated to be 
received in the Spring. 

Line 7 - California State Libraries Facilities & Equipment includes a carryover from FY 23 for a 
vending machine and related expenses and website development.  Total funds were received and 
carried over from prior years.  

Line 8 – California State Library Lunch at the Library includes support for summer meals and 
programming for families.  Funds are anticipated to be received in the Spring. 

Line 9 – California State Library Zip Books include support for purchase suggestions which 
provide patrons with books not currently available that become part of the Library collection.  Total 
funds were received. 

Expenses 

Line 14 – Salaried includes a portion of salaries at the Bob Lucas Branch paid for by the California 
Library Literary Services grant. YTD is trending in line with budget.  

Line 15 – Hourly includes a portion of hourly wages at the Bob Lucas Brach funded by the 
California Library Literary Services grant for English as a second language services. YTD is trending 
in line with budget.  

Lines 18-21 – Operating Expenses include staff recognition, development and training, and 
miscellaneous furniture and equipment funded by the Altadena Library Foundation and Friends of 
the Altadena Library. It also includes the purchase of a vending machine and related expenses 
carried over from FY 23 funding from the Expanding our Footprint grant. YTD is trending over 
budget at 96% due to the new vending machines purchased in January.  

Page 49 of 138



Altadena Library District 
Monthly Variance Analysis 

February 2024 – 67% Year to Date (YTD) 

Lines 24-36 – Programs include programing for adults, teens, and youth, the summer reading 
program, literacy services, and various other programs.  YTD is trending under budget at 27% due 
to the timing of programs.  

Line 39 – Website Development includes website subscription funds carried over from FY 23 
funding from the Expanding our footprint grant.  YTD is trending over budget at 91% due to an 
annual subscription paid at the beginning of the fiscal year.  

Line 44 Net Revenue / (Expenses) is the year-to-date balance of unused donations and grant 
funds. YTD is $42,595 due to the timing of grant expenses which will be incurred throughout the 
fiscal year.  

Page 50 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
AGENDA ITEM VI.E.i. 

REPORT: Facilities Ad Hoc Committee MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Trustee Katie Clark  LOCATION:  Main Library Community Room 

Since our last board meeting the team has continued our weekly Monday meetings with a focus 
on the following: 

a. Community Focus Group – Future meetings are being planned as needed for
the Main Library project, and the CFG has been updated about recent
developments (including expanded grant funding).

b. Offsite Facilities – The committee is in discussions with the County of Los
Angeles Parks and Recreation about the use of available facilities at Loma Alta
Park. We also continue to explore other potential sites for additional storage or
library space.

c. Architectural Services –The Bob Lucas Branch plans are complete. The
Construction Documents phase is underway for the Main Library.

d. Coordination with County departments – The CUP for the Bob Lucas has
been approved and all required documents filed with the county. We are working
with Regional Planning to determine if a CUP is still required for the Main Library
now that the community room alternate has been removed from the project.

e. Project Schedule – Pending approval of the contractor for the Bob Lucas
Library, we are currently anticipating start of construction for the Bob Lucas
Library in April of 2024, followed by the Main Library starting in April of 2025. We
are planning a groundbreaking ceremony at the Bob Lucas Library on April 18th.

f. Project Budget - We recently received confirmation from the State Library that
we are going to be able to use Building Forward Infrastructure grant funds on an
expanded list of scope items. This means that we went from being able to spend
$4.1 million to almost the full $7.5 million of the grant, which resolves the budget
shortfall we discussed at the January board retreat.

g. Communications and Community Outreach – The Communications Working
Group has developed a communications plan to guide community outreach for
the building projects. We have already begun sharing a series of videos, emails,
and direct mail pieces to help inform the community about the building projects
and library services, and more are being planned.

h. CEQA Services – Chambers Group is nearing completion of the Initial Study
checklist for the Main Library. Before the CEQA process can proceed further, we
need to determine if the County will require a CUP for the Main Library; if so, they
will become the lead agency responsible for the environmental review.

i. Bob Lucas Historical Preservation – Photographic documentation of the Bob
Lucas mural by a murals and public art expert, in preparation for historical
preservation, is complete.

Page 51 of 138



j. Main Library Parking Options – Julian Garcia and Daniel Quintana from L.A.
County Traffic, Safety, and Mobility attend the July 31 committee meeting to
provide an update on progress on the street parking plan. Two options were
presented, both of which include angled parking and a bike lane. These options
have also been presented to the Altadena Town Council. The Traffic, Safety and
Mobility department will continue outreach on the subject.

Page 52 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
AGENDA ITEM VI.E.ii. 

REPORT: Election Ad Hoc Committee MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Trustee Jason Capell LOCATION:  Main Library Community Room 

The Election Ad Hoc Committee met on March 1st to continue planning community education 
and outreach around our first Board of Trustees election. The 2024 election will take place 
under our new district based elections. The three seats that will be open in November are in 
districts 1, 2, and 5.  Our work, so far, has been focused on three key areas: 

1. Updating our website with a landing page that has all the key information and deadlines
while merging in important information from the work that was done to create the new districts
2. Drafting a letter to be sent to all candidates and applicants for past board vacancies .
This letter will be sent out when we get closer to the filing date for candidates to run for election
to make them aware of this year's elections.
3. Reaching out to Altadena Town Council members whose districts overlap with our
district vacancies, working with them to encourage community leaders in their districts to
participate in the library elections.

We will meet again in the first half of April and provide additional updates at the April Board 
meeting. 

Page 53 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
GOVERNMENT LIAISON REPORT FOR MARCH 2024 

REPORT:  Government Liaison MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Trustee Terry Andrues LOCATION: Main Library Community Room 

Two years ago, Governor Newsom announced a State Budget surplus of $97.5 billion, the 
largest in state history.  But largely because of overestimates in revenue, that budget surplus 
has turned into a deficit of $37 billion and counting. 

In an effort to help cut state spending, a $9.1 million program that provides State Park passes to 
public libraries for the next 3 years has been eliminated in the revised budget.  You can read 
about this in the attached LA Times article from earlier this month.   

This program would have little effect on our library, which checks out its current allotment of 24 
passes according to the rate below (thanks Diana and Nikki):   

From July 2022-June 2023: 129 circulations 
From July 2023-Dec. 2023: 78 circulations 

At the current demand we could replace our 24 $50 passes with a $1,200 in expense to our 
Collection budget.  

But other libraries across the state depend on these passes as a way to save entry and parking 
fees for their patrons.  

I thought this was an interesting example of how small changes in state spending can put a 
strain directly on library services, especially in underserved areas.  

Page 54 of 138



Page 55 of 138



Page 56 of 138



Page 57 of 138



Page 58 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
AGENDA ITEM VIII.A REPORT FOR MARCH 2024 

MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 DEPARTMENT: Administration 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION: Main Library Community Room 

TITLE: Authorization for District Director to contract with a Construction Firm for the Bob Lucas 
Library Renovation Project 

BACKGROUND: 

The Facilities Committee has been working in coordination with our capital project management 
team from Huckabee Inc., our architectural team from Anderson Brule Architects and our 
attorney, Kevin Flautt, of Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann and Girard to select a construction 
company to complete the Bob Lucas Memorial Library and Literacy Center renovation project. 

Previous to this, the Board of Trustees approved the Bob Lucas Library RFP for construction on 
January 22, 2024. Los Angeles County Regional Planning approved the Conditional Use Permit 
for the project on January 23, 2024. The RFP was posted on January 24, 2024 with a closing 
deadline of March 4, 2024. 

Prior to the deadline, the selection team met to review the drafted evaluation criteria based on 
the requirements in the RFP and came to agreement on the method for scoring the proposals 
on our initial review.   

Three proposals, in the following dollar amounts, were received by the deadline: 

• Loengreen, Inc. ($3,399,000 base / $3,633,000 alternate1)
• Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc. ($3,057,777 base / $3,095,777 alternate)
• Monet Construction, Inc. ($2,996,000 base / $2,998,000 alternate)

Each proposal was reviewed carefully and scored by the scoring team, which consisted of 
Jennifer Pearson (Capital Project Manager – Huckabee), Chad Nielsen (Construction Manager 
– Huckabee), and Mark Schoeman (Principal Architect – ABA). The top-scoring firm was Monet
Construction, Inc. A copy of the final scoring matrix is included with this report.

No proposer protests were filed within the time allowed under the RFP requirements. 

The proposals were also reviewed by Kevin Flautt (Attorney, KMTG) for conformance with the 
RFP legal requirements. 

1 This amount reflects the contractor’s proposal for the increased cost of alternative roofing material. 

Page 59 of 138



The scoring team also contacted multiple references listed by Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc. and 
Monet Construction, Inc. It should be noted that Loengreen, Inc. did not submit references.  
 
Having reviewed the proposals, scores, and reference checks with legal and the scoring team, it 
is the unanimous recommendation of the Ad-Hoc Facilities Committee to contract with the 
lowest proposer Monet Construction, Inc. for the construction of the Bob Lucas Library 
Renovation Project. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Monet Construction, Inc.’s proposed base bid cost for the project is $2,996,000. The Ad-Hoc 
Facilities Committee has budgeted an additional 10% owner’s contingency of $299,600, for a 
total budgeted cost of $3,295,600. 

RECOMMENDATION  

Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees authorize the District Director to contract with 
Monet Construction, Inc. for the construction of the Bob Lucas Library Renovation Project for a 
total budgeted cost of $3,295,600, which includes a 10% contingency.

Page 60 of 138



For this round, please score each proposal out of the total possible points. Golden Sun Enterprise Loengreen Monet Construction

CRITERIA TOTAL POINTS POSSIBLE SCORING CONSIDERATIONS TOTAL POINTS AWARDED TOTAL POINTS AWARDED TOTAL POINTS AWARDED

Complete proposal package Yes   No All certifications submitted? Yes Yes Yes

 

Firm Information
60

Firm history, financial resources, insurance, claims 

history, safety record, license, DIR registration
37 12 47

Experience/Past Projects
60

Relevance of recent projects - type, value, location, 

delivery method
25 0 58

Project Approach 45
Proposed personnel; schedule with milestones; 

approach to cost, schedule, and risk management
12.5 0 38

Comments on Contract 15 11 10 11

Overall suitability for the project 30 8 3 30

Cost 150 95 60 150

TOTAL POINTS 360 0 188.5 85 334

FINAL RANKINGS 2 3 1

BOB LUCAS LIBRARY CONSTRUCTION RFP PROPOSAL SCORING

1
Page 61 of 138



 

ADDRESS: 6732 WHITE OAK AVE • VAN NUYS • CALIFORNIA 91406 • USA 
PHONE: 818-727-1082 • FAX: 818-727-1062 • E-MAIL: INFO@GOLDENSUNFIRM.COM 

 

 
 
February 28, 2024 
 
Altadena Library District 
600 E Mariposa St. 
Altadena, CA 91001 
 
Subject:  Bob Lucas Memorial Library and Literacy Center Construction Project 

    Location: 2659 Lincoln Ave, Altadena, CA 91001 
    Duration: One Year 
    Budget: $ 3.2MM 

 
Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc. (GSE) is pleased to submit its Bid Proposal for the subject 
project. We feel we are proficient and capable of performing and executing the project for 
the Altadena Library District. The most impressive qualification of GSE is an energetic 
and experienced staff with many years of experience performing local public contracts.  
 
GSE is submitting the requested information, which will clearly set forth our 
understanding of the critical issues to be addressed and the goals and objectives to be 
met. 
 
Thank you for considering our proposal. We look forward to the opportunity to discuss 
the details further and collaborate with the Altadena Library District to bring this project to 
fruition. Should you require any additional information or clarification, please do not 
hesitate to contact me at (310) 363-1015 or info@gsei.us. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Mohammad Elikaee, President 
Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 62 of 138

mailto:info@gsei.us


Bob Lucas Memorial Library and Literacy Center Construction Project 

Page 2 
February 28, 2024 
 

 

 
Firm Information 
 
Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc. (GSE) operates as a Subchapter S Corporation within the 
construction industry, situated in Van Nuys, CA. Our primary focus at GSE includes 
public projects, particularly within the municipal facilities and school districts of Los 
Angeles County. 
The GSE management team is comprised of well-experienced personnel with more than 
40 years of engineering experience. They have overseen and directly executed public 
works projects exceeding $20 million for various school districts, municipalities, counties, 
and the State of California. 
 
Mr. Mohammad (Arsen) Elikaee serves as the Owner/CEO of GSE, bringing with him an 
educational background in Electrical Engineering. Ms. Sara Jafari, on the other hand, 
holds the position of Principal Manager, equipped with a Master's degree in Architecture. 
 
With licensures in General Engineering, General Building, and MEP (A, B, C10, C20, & 
C36), GSE possesses the capability to self-perform and efficiently manage a diverse 
array of scopes utilizing its core workforce. This enables us to deliver projects with 
heightened efficiency and cost-effectiveness. GSE’s CSLB license number is 1052941. 
 
GSE is registered with the California State Department of Industrial Relations, holding 
registration number PW-LR-1000569894. 
 
GSE and the architect firm will work closely with district staff to ensure optimal outcomes 
within specified timelines and budgets. GSE will comply with workplace safety and 
environmental protocols, and utilize all its construction management expertise, to 
minimize public disruptions.  
 
With a robust financial capacity and solid cash flow, GSE has established lines of credit 
with Bank of America and BMO. This financial strength positions us favorably to 
undertake and successfully complete the proposed scope of work for the Altadena 
Library District. 
 
Experience 
 
Within this proposal, we have enclosed a comprehensive list detailing completed and 
ongoing projects, including pertinent details and contact information for respective 
owners. 
 
Project Approach 
 
GSE intends to deploy its highly experienced personnel to execute this project efficiently: 
Arsen Elikaee: Project Manager 
Alex Lopez: Superintendent 
 

Page 63 of 138



Bob Lucas Memorial Library and Literacy Center Construction Project 

Page 3 
February 28, 2024 
 

 

GSE shall furnish a Preliminary Schedule along with supplementary information in the 
following manner: 
 
1) The Preliminary Schedule shall be presented in a time-scaled format, outlining all 

tasks and the Project's critical path. 
 
2) The Preliminary Schedule includes a narrative to explain its basis. 
 

2-1 Basis for assumptions made in schedule preparation; 
2-2 Identification of critical path activities; 
2-3 Anticipation and mitigation strategies for potential problem areas; 
2-4 Recognition of long-lead delivery items. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64 of 138



 

pg. 1 

PROJECTS LIST 

Project Name: Lamanda Park Library Pocket Park 
Project Type: Government 
Location: 140 South Altadena Drive, Pasadena, CA 91107 
Owner: City of Pasadena 
Architect or Engineer: N/A 
Construction Manager: Jeff Khun 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (626) 744-7389, 
JKhun@cityofpasadena.net  
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: Playground Renovation & Site Works 
Date of Completion: 10/07/2022 
 
Project Name: Central Park Dog Park 
Project Type: Government 
Location: 11200 Base Line Rd., Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91701 
Owner: City of Rancho Cucamonga 
Architect or Engineer: CWDG 
Construction Manager: Michael Parmer 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (909) 774 –2006, 
Michael.Parmer@cityofrc.us 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: 4.7 Acre Dog Park Ground-up 
Date of Completion: 12/30/2023 
 
Project Name: Greenhouse Projects at S El Monte HS and Arroyo HS 
Project Type: Government 
Location: 1001 Durfee Ave., S El Monte, CA 91733 
Owner: South El Monte Union High School District 
Architect or Engineer: CSDA Design Group 
Construction Manager: Lena Luna 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (626) 444-9005,  
Lena.luna@emuhsd.org 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: Building 2 Greenhouse Structures with Equipment 
Date of Completion: 01/30/2024 
 
 
Project Name: Victory Park Restroom Replacement 
Project Type: Government 
Location: 2575 Paloma Street, Pasadena, CA 91107 
Owner: City of Pasadena 
Architect or Engineer: Onyx 
Construction Manager: Tiffiny Chen 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (626) 744 –6771, 
ttran@cityofpasadena.net 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: Building Park Restroom, Office and Storage 
Date of Completion: 01/27/2021 
 
Project Name: Jefferson School Pickleball Courts Project 
Project Type: Government 
Location: 1500 E Villa St., Pasadena, CA 91106 
Owner: City of Pasadena 
Architect or Engineer: N/A 
Construction Manager: Jeff Khun 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (626) 744-7389,  
JKhun@cityofpasadena.net  
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: 2 Pickleball Courts Construction 
Date of Completion: 09/30/2023 

Page 65 of 138



 

pg. 2 

PROJECTS LIST 

 
Project Name: Brenner Park Renovation 
Project Type: Government 
Location: 235 Barthe Dr., Pasadena, CA 91103 
Owner: City of Pasadena 
Architect or Engineer: N/A 
Construction Manager: Jeff Khun 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (626) 744-7389,  
JKhun@cityofpasadena.net  
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: Tennis, Basketball and Baseball Field Renovation 
Date of Completion: 12/30/2023 

 
Project Name: Palm Crest Site Utilities Improvement 
Project Type: Public Education 
Location: 5025 Palm Drive, La Canada, CA 91011 
Owner: La Canada Unified School District 
Architect or Engineer: LPA 
Construction Manager: Frank Navaro 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (562) 980-2515, 
Fnavarro@linikcorp.com 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: Underground Utilities Replacement 
Date of Completion: 07/31/2020 
 
Project Name: Fencing & Wayfinding at LCHS 
Project Type: Public Education 
Location: 4463 Oak Grove Dr., La Canada, CA 91011 
Owner: La Canada Unified School District 
Architect or Engineer: A4E 
Construction Manager: Frank Navaro 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (562) 980-2515, 
Fnavarro@linikcorp.com 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: Fencing, Ramp, Stairs, and Paving 
Date of Completion: 11/01/2020 
 
Project Name: Portable Removal PH1-7 Sites 
Project Type: Public Education 
Location: 39139 10th Street East Palmdale, CA 93550 
Owner: Palmdale School District 
Architect or Engineer: N/A 
Construction Manager: Tom Brown 
Construction Manager Contact (Name and Current Phone #): (661) 373-4312,  
tbrown@hple.co 
Description of Project, Scope of Work Performed: Classroom Removal 
Date of Completion: 07/31/2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Other Projects: 
 
Palmdale Unified School District- Joshua Hills ES Future Learning Spaces- Completed in 2018. 
 
Palmdale Unified School District- Sage Academy Kitchen Remodel- Completed in 2018. 

Page 66 of 138



 

pg. 3 

PROJECTS LIST 

 
Palmdale Unified School District- Sage Academy Emergency Kitchen Restoration- Completed in 2018. 
 
Glendale Unified School District- Window Replacement at Franklin ES- Completed in 2018. 
 
Glendale Unified School District- Play Area Improvements at Muir ES- Completed in 2018. 
 
Glendale Unified School District- LED Lighting Upgrade at Various School Sites- Completed in 2018. 
 
City of Alhambra- Stoneman Avenue Parking Lot Pavement Rehabilitation and Lid Improvements- 
Completed in 2018. 
 
Glendale Unified School District- Cafe Wall & Window Repair - Verdugo Woodlands ES- Completed in 
2019. 
 
City of Pasadena- Installation of Restroom Building at Desiderio Park- Completed in 2020. 
 
City of Santa Clarita- Mountain View Park Play Area Phase II- Completed in 2021. 
 
Los Angeles Community Development Authority- Ocean Park Unit Flooring Replacement- Completed 
in 2021. 
 
State of California- Department of General Services- Exposition Park Parking Gates and Kiosks- 
Completed in 2021. 

Palmdale Water District – Conservation Garden Phase 1- Completed in 2022. 
 
Azusa Unified School District- Underground Utility Replacement - In Progress. 
 
City of Industry- Fire Damage Repair of EV and Solar Energy System at Metrolink Station- In Progress. 
 
 
 

Page 67 of 138



Page 68 of 138



Page 69 of 138



���������������	������
��
����

���������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������� �������������������
���������� ����������������������!

�������"�#��������$������$�

����������%

����������%

����������%

����������%

����������%

����������%

�����&

��'�%
������

"�(����)#%
���

�*'���
�������%

�������

"�(����)���+,#%
����

�������

����������'���%��������������'���%�����$��

�'������%���-�,./�0/1,2-203,/�.)45/1�26�37��������������������,./�8)4209"2/6#�:;6,�.3</�������������������81)<262)76�)1�=/�/75)16/5!
�-�����$�������� �������6;=>/0,�,)�,./�,/1:6�375�0)752,2)76�)-�,./�8)4209��0/1,327�8)4202/6�:39�1/?;21/�37�/75)16/:/7,!����6,3,/:/7,�)7
,.26�0/1,2-203,/�5)/6�7),�0)7-/1�12@.,6�,)�,./�0/1,2-203,/�.)45/1�27�42/;�)-�6;0.�/75)16/:/7,"6#!

��������������������������������'������������'������������������������$�����������������������������!�����
������������������������'������������$���������'�����������������������������$������������������������
��� !������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������$��������"�#��������A��
���������������������������������������������������!

BCDEFG

HIJK�LMMNOJPQR

HEL�LMMNOJPQR

S

S

��(��

����
 ��

����
����

CDTU�TU�CB�VEFCTWX�CDYC�CDE�IBZTVTEU�BW�T[U\FY[VE�ZTUCE]�̂EZB_�DỲ E�̂EE[�TUU\E]�CB�CDE�T[U\FE]�[YaE]�Ŷ B̀ E�WBF�CDE�IBZTVX�IEFTB]
T[]TVYCE]	��[BC_TCDUCY[]T[b�Y[X�FEc\TFEaE[Cd�CEFa�BF�VB[]TCTB[�BW�Y[X�VB[CFYVC�BF�BCDEF�]BV\aE[C�_TCD�FEUIEVC�CB�_DTVD�CDTU
VEFCTWTVYCE�aYX�̂E�TUU\E]�BF�aYX�IEFCYT[d�CDE�T[U\FY[VE�YWWBF]E]�̂X�CDE�IBZTVTEU�]EUVFT̂E]�DEFET[�TU�U\̂ eEVC�CB�YZZ�CDE�CEFaUd
EfVZ\UTB[U�Y[]�VB[]TCTB[U�BW�U\VD�IBZTVTEU	�ZTaTCU�UDB_[�aYX�DỲ E�̂EE[�FE]\VE]�̂X�IYT]�VZYTaU	

S

S

S

SIFBIEFCX�]YaYbE

B̂]TZX�T[e\FX�HIJK�LMMNOJPQR

B̂]TZX�T[e\FX�HIJK�gJKhiPR

VBâ T[E]�UT[bZE�ZTaTC

Y\CBU�B[ZX

Y\CBUY\CBU�B[ZX
[B[
B_[E]

UVDE]\ZE]B_[E]

Y[X�Y\CB

���'��������������

��(��

 �j�����'��������
�����'������k����������

BWWTVEFlaEâ EF�EfVZ\]E]m
"'3753,)19�27���#

]EUVFTICTB[�BW�BIEFYCTB[U�nJoip
Tq�rJhd�OJhMKNnJ�sPOJK

Y[X�IFBIFTECBFlIYFC[EFlEfEV\CT̀E

S

S

S

E	Z	�]TUEYUE�
�IBZTVX�ZTaTC

E	Z	�]TUEYUE�
�EY�EaIZBXEE

E	Z	�EYVD�YVVT]E[C

EF
BCD


UCYC\CE
IEF

��'���"''(��(����#
���������

"''(��(����#
���������

��������'����������������������
����

����������������������(���������(�����������"�����tut���552,2)734��/:31v6��0./5;4/��:39�=/�3,,30./5�2-�:)1/�6830/�26�1/?;21/5#

�����������

�'����������� SEYVD�BVV\FFE[VE

SYbbFEbYCE

S

BVV\F

VZYTaU
aY]E

]E] FECE[CTB[S

SIFB]\VCU�
�VBaIlBI�Ybb

SbE[EFYZ�YbbFEbYCE

SIEFUB[YZ�w�Y]̀ �T[e\FX

SaE]�EfI�HYPr�iPJ�gJKhiPR

SEYVD�BVV\FFE[VE
]YaYbE�CB�FE[CE]

SIFEaTUEU�HEL�iMMsKKJPMJR

�''�������$����������������

VZYTaU
aY]E BVV\F

bE[xZ�YbbFEbYCE�ZTaTC�YIIZTEU�IEFG

IBZTVX
IFB

eEVC ZBV

���������������������������������
�����"''(��(����#

�����������

������A�����������������

�����yz�"yut{(u|#

}�t~��*yutz��������������!���44�12@.,6�1/6/1</5!

�����������������

�./������73:/�375�4)@)�31/�1/@26,/1/5�:31v6�)-�����

DTFE]
Y\CBU�B[ZX

����������

������������������������������

������������������������

����������������������

����� ����� ���

������������ ������������

����� �¡�������������

��������¢�������£� ���

�����¤� �����¥��¦��

¦����¢�����������������

�����

� ��������������� ���������� ���������� ���������

���������

���������

���������

�©²©́��²±µ��́ ́±²¶� °̄±²·́��«µ̧ ²ª

����������������� ���������� ����������

Page 70 of 138



                                                                                                          SC     

       ISSUE DATE: 02-22-2024                                                                                     
                                                                                 9318293-2023                     
                                                                                    5                             
                                                                                 05-23-2024                       
                                                                      05-23-2023/05-23-2024                       

        CITY OF INDUSTRY                            SC                                                             
        15625 MAYOR DAVE WAY                                                                                       
        CITY OF INDUSTRY CA 91744-3941                                                                             

                                                             10                                                    

                          10                                                                                       

       EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY LIMIT INCLUDING DEFENSE COSTS:  $1,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE.                          

       ENDORSEMENT #2572 ENTITLED BLANKET WAIVER OF SUBROGATION EFFECTIVE                                       
       2023-05-23 IS ATTACHED TO AND FORMS A PART OF THIS POLICY                                                
                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                  
       GOLDEN SUN ENTERPRISE, INC.                 SC                                                             
       6732 WHITE OAK AVE                                                                                         
       VAN NUYS CA 91406                                                                                          

                                                                                                                  
                                                                         PRINTED : 02-22-2024                     

POLICYHOLDER COPY

[P11,HO]

Page 71 of 138



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

November 4, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Arsen Elikaee 
President 
Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc. 
6732 White Oak Ave. 
Van Nuys, CA 91406 
 
RE: Eligibility for Experience Rating 
       Insured: Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc. 
       Policy Number: 93182932022 
       Effective Dates: 5/23/2022 – 5/23/2023 
       Bureau File Number: 25-91-40 
 
 
Dear Mr. Elikaee: 
 
Whether or not your company is eligible for experience rating is determined by a number of factors.  
To determine eligibility, your payroll developed during the experience period is totaled by classification 
code. These totals are multiplied by the expected loss rate that applies as of the effective date of the ex-
perience modification. The sum of these calculations must equal or exceed the minimum threshold. As of 
September 1, 2022, the qualifying threshold is $9,200. Due to insufficient expected losses Golden Sun 
Enterprise, Inc. does not qualify for experience rating for 2022. In addition, Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc. 
did not qualify for experience rating for 2019, 2020 and 2021 policy periods. 
 
Additional information on how a business qualifies for experience rating can be found in the Guide to 
Workers’ Compensation Insurance at www.wcrib.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Tony Mahdavi, Senior Analyst 
Contact Center 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

1901 Harrison Street, 17th Floor 
Oakland, CA 94612 

Voice 415.777.0777 
Fax 415.778.7007 

www.wcirb.com 
customerservice@wcirb.com  

Page 72 of 138



Page 73 of 138



Page 74 of 138



Page 75 of 138



DRAFT ALTADENA LIBRARY PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS 

Page 1 

 

PROPOSER'S CHECKLIST 

All items on the Proposer's Checklist must be initialed, dated and submitted for the Proposal to 
be considered complete. The District reserves the right to award a Contract in a manner and on 
the basis which will best serve the District, taking into consideration the information in the 
statement of Proposer's Proposal, qualifications and past work history with the District and in the 
local area. The Proposer's attention is especially called to the following forms which must be 
executed in full as required: 

1. a)   PROPOSAL  
    The total Proposal price must be shown in the space provided. 

Initial:   Date:  

b) PROPOSAL SIGNATURE SHEET 
To be filled in and signed by the Proposer. 

Initial:   Date:  

3. NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION 
 A Non-Collusion Declaration must be filled out, signed, and submitted with the 
Proposal for the Proposal documents to be considered complete. 

Initial:   Date:  

4. DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
 A Designation of Subcontractors must be filled out and submitted with the Proposal 
for the Proposal documents to be considered complete. 

Initial:   Date:  

5. INSURANCE 
 The insurance requirements for this project have been read and understood.  

Initial:   Date:  

 

6. SITE VISIT (optional) 
 The Proposer certifies that it has toured the project site and is familiar with the 
work involved. 

Initial:   Date:  

 

     

 

 

 

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

Page 76 of 138



DRAFT ALTADENA LIBRARY PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT 
DOCUMENTS 

Page 2 

 

PROPOSERS CHECKLIST CONTINUED 

7. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS 
 The Proposer understands that a performance bond issued by an approved surety 
equaling one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract amount will be required. A payment 
bond equaling one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract amount will also be required. 

Initial:   Date:  

8. WORK SCHEDULE 
 The District makes no guarantee as to the method of work chosen by the Proposer. 
It is the Proposer's responsibility to plan and schedule the work in order to complete the 
work in the time specified in the Special Provisions. 

Initial:   Date:  

9. PROPOSAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SECTION 3(b)   
The Proposer acknowledges that it must draft and submit a separate document containing 
all of the information requested under Section 3 (b) of the RFP. 

Initial:   Date:  

10. ADDENDA 
 The Proposer acknowledges that it must sign and attach any applicable addenda 
to the Proposal. 

Initial:   Date:  

11. WORKERS COMPENSATION 
 The Proposer acknowledgment that Worker's Compensation Insurance will be 
required for this project. 

 
        Initial:_____________________      Date:_________________ 
 

 

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

ME 02/28/2024

Page 77 of 138



Page 78 of 138



Page 79 of 138



 

Page 80 of 138



 

DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

Each Proposer shall submit the name, contractor license number, and business location of each subcontractor who will perform work 
or labor or render service to the Contractor for the construction of the work performed under these specifications in excess of one-half 
(1/2) of one percent (1%) of the prime Contractor's total Proposal. If the Contractor fails to specify a subcontractor for any portion of 
the work to be performed under the Contract, it shall be deemed to have agreed to perform such portion itself, and it shall not be 
permitted to subcontract that portion of the work except under the conditions hereinafter set forth. (Attach additional forms as necessary) 

Name 
Subcontractor 

Street Address of 
Shop, Mill or 

Office  

Types of 
Work/Category of 

Contract 

$ Value of Work 
to be Performed  

DIR 
Registration 

Number 

Subcontractor's License 
Number/ Type/Exp. 

Date 

      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

 
If no subcontractors will be used, write "None" here:__________________ 
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and this Declaration is executed this ________ day of 
_________________, 20___, in ______________, California. 
 
By:  ______________________________________ 
 
Contractor Company Name:  ______________________________________ 
 

SUBCONTRACTOR FORM MUST BE RETURNED WITH PROPOSAL 

28
February 24 Van Nuys

Mohammad Elikaee

Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc.

Cybertech Construction
Company, Inc.

6732 White Oak Ave.
Van Nuys, CA 91406

Concrete Works $300K 921223/ C-8/ 08-31-241000030859

Pacific Single Ply
Roofing, Inc. 1000007564P.O. Box 217

La Habra, CA 90633 $80K 777968/ C-39/ 05-31-2024Roofing

Prime Acoustics 31129  Via Colinas, STE 702
Westlake Village, CA 91362 Acoustical/ Insulation $50K 739826/ C-2/ 08-31-20251000004361

Abatement 30KPower One LLC 2250 E Mira Loma Way, 
STE 200
Anaheim, CA 92806

1032145/ C-22, HAZ/ 10/31/20251000054433

Page 81 of 138



 

 
ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
FOR 

BOB LUCAS MEMORIAL LIBRARY AND LITERACY 
CENTER CONSTRUCTION PROJECT  

   

 
 
 

 

• Proposals will be received by Nikki Winslow electronically on  
https://www.bidnetdirect.com/california/ald until 3:00 pm on March 4, 2024. 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1

02/28/2024

Page 82 of 138

https://www.bidnetdirect.com/california/ald


 

 

 

ADDENDUM TO 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
BOB LUCAS MEMORIAL 
LIBRARY AND LITERACY 
CENTER CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 
 Altadena Library District 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 3 

 
DATE:  February 21, 2024 

 

This addendum is issued to modify the previously issued RFP documents and/or given for 

informational purposes, and is hereby made a part of the RFP documents. The proposer shall 

acknowledge receipt of any and all addenda, listing the Addenda by number(s) and date(s) in 

their Letter of Interest. 

 

Questions and Answers:  

 

1. Question: Will all furniture and equipment be removed from the building prior to 

turnover to the contractor? 

 

Answer: Three rolling book carts and three staff workstations will need to be included in 

the demolition. All other furniture and equipment not attached to the building will be 

removed prior to turnover. Photos of carts and workstations are shown below:  

02/28/2024

Page 83 of 138



 

 

 

ADDENDUM TO 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
BOB LUCAS MEMORIAL 
LIBRARY AND LITERACY 
CENTER CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 
 Altadena Library District 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 4 

 
DATE:  February 27, 2024 

 

This addendum is issued to modify the previously issued RFP documents and/or given for 

informational purposes, and is hereby made a part of the RFP documents. The proposer shall 

acknowledge receipt of any and all addenda, listing the Addenda by number(s) and date(s) in 

their Letter of Interest. 

 

Questions and Answers:  

 

1. Question: Upon review of the bid documents, we noticed there is no Bid Bond form.  

Please advise. 

 

Answer: No bid bond is required for this RFP.  

 

2. Question: Please confirm if it is acceptable to provide the location of the subcontractor on 

the designation of subcontractors' form during the submission of the bid, and then 

provide the complete address of the subcontractor, as well as the $ value of the work to 

be performed, within 24 hours of bid submission. 

 

Answer:  Yes, this is acceptable.  

 

3. Question: Addendum 2 via BidNet Direct does not contain any documents. 

 

Answer: Addendum 2 changed only the deadlines for questions and bid intents. No 

documents were included. 

 

4. Question: Are library shelves included in the scope of this RFP? 

 02/28/2024

Page 84 of 138



 

 

 

ADDENDUM TO 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
BOB LUCAS MEMORIAL 
LIBRARY AND LITERACY 
CENTER CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT 
 Altadena Library District 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 5 

 
DATE:  February 28, 2024 

 

This addendum is issued to modify the previously issued RFP documents and/or given for 

informational purposes, and is hereby made a part of the RFP documents. The proposer shall 

acknowledge receipt of any and all addenda, listing the Addenda by number(s) and date(s) in 

their Letter of Interest. 

 

Changes to the Specifications:  

1. Spec. 11 1519 – LIBRARY DETECTION SYSTEMS: Section is deleted. There is no library 

detection system required for the project. 

 

END OF ADDENDUM 

 

02/28/2024

Page 85 of 138



Page 86 of 138



Page 87 of 138



Page 88 of 138



 

PROPOSAL 

 
The undersigned Proposer hereby proposes to furnish and deliver all necessary labor, tools, 
equipment, and other means of construction to perform the work required for the completion of 
the project entitled "BOB LUCAS MEMORIAL LIBRARY AND LITERACY CENTER  
CONSTRUCTION PROJECT" in accordance with the intent of all plans, specifications, and 
addenda issued by the District in the amount of: 
(Written)_______________________________________________________________ dollars 
 
(Number) $                  .00  
 
Price including Bid Alternate for provision of Alternate Roofing Materials:  
 
(Written)_______________________________________________________________ dollars 
 
(Number) $                  .00  
 

The Proposer has read the accompanying instructions to Proposers, has carefully examined the 
location(s) of the proposed work, and has examined all Contract Documents, drawings and 
addenda issued by the District and will contract with the District to construct the project, complete 
and in satisfactory condition. 

The Proposer further acknowledges that it has adjusted its Proposal price to include all possible 
items which may influence the proposal during the time period from notice of intent to award 
through and until formal award by the District. Requests for Proposal price change due to the 
delay shall not be agreed to by the District. 

Company Name:  
  
Proposer's Name (Printed):  

Proposer's Title:  

Proposer's Signature:  
Date:  

  
Address:  

  

Phone Number:  
  
Contractor's License Number:  

Classification:  
Expiration Date:  

 
 
 

Three Million, Ninety-Five Thousand, Seven Hundred and Seventy-Seven 00/100

3,057,777

Three Million, Fifty-Seven Thousand, Seven Hundred and Seventy-Seven 00/100

3,095,777

Golden Sun Enterprise, Inc.

Mohammad Elikaee
President

02/28/2024

6732 White Oak Ave.

Van Nuys, CA 91406
(310) 363-1015

1052941
A, B, C10, C20 & C36

04/30/2025

Page 89 of 138



Page 90 of 138



Page 91 of 138



Page 92 of 138



Page 93 of 138



Page 94 of 138



DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

Each Proposer shall submit the name, contractor license number, and business location of each subcontractor who will perform work 
or labor or render service to the Contractor for the construction of the work performed under these specifications in excess of one-half 
(1/2) of one percent (1 %) of the prime Contractor's total Proposal. If the Contractor fails to specify a subcontractor for any portion of 
the work to be performed under the Contract, it shall be deemed to have agreed to perform such portion itself, and it shall not be 
permitted to subcontract that portion of the work except under the conditions hereinafter set forth. (Attach additional forms as necessary) 

Name Street Address of Types of $ Value of Work DIR Subcontractor's License 
Subcontractor Shop, Mill or Work/Category of to be Performed Registration Number/ Type/Exp. 

Office Contract Number Date 
Electrical works $284,330.00 1000580743 1063245 C10, 02/28/2026 

Air Design 2229 Dufee Ave STE H 
HVAC $173,800.00 1000004802 953818, C20, 10/31/2024 Solutions El Monte, CA 91732 

Prime Acoustics 31129 Via Colinas #702 
Acoustical ceiling $51,500.00 1000004361 739826, C2, 8/31/2025 Westlake Villaoe, CA 91362 

Marc Anthony 680 ARROW HWY 
Glazing system $185,000.00 1000009398 589450, C17, 5/31/2025 

Glazina Contractor Inc LA VERNE CA 91750 

If no subcontractors will be used, write "None" here: _______ _ 
I declare ::4er penalty �f_perjury that the foregoing is true and correct and this Declaration is executed this _�_tVi __ day of

f'-10r-Qf!. , 20�, in VJ<; kt:hffed� , California. 

H0"t= 
L-0 et{ (j 12 EE N ZH v

By: J -P,cl/\J' (cJ OLll 

Contractor Company Name: 

SUBCONTRACTOR FORM MUST BE RETURNED WITH PROPOSAL 

12803 Temescal Canyon Rd
Unit E, Corona, CA 92883

Wakeland Electric Inc

Page 95 of 138



03/03/2024

CAL-KOR Insurance Services
3255 Wilshire Blvd
Ste 1500
Los Angeles CA 90010

mktdir
(213) 387-5000 (213) 388-8595

Loengreen Inc.
4728 Commonwealth Avenue

La Canada CA 91011

United National Insurance Company
Scottsdale Insurance Company
State Compensation Insurance Fund

CL242554695

A Y Y CSC0000696 01/14/2024 01/14/2025

1,000,000
50,000
5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

A Y Y CSC0000696 01/14/2024 01/14/2025

1,000,000

B
50,000

Y Y CXS4016706 01/14/2024 01/14/2025
4,000,000
4,000,000

C Y Y 92441452023 01/12/2024 01/12/2025
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

1. None of the above-described policies will be canceled until 30 days' written notice has been given to the District at the address indicated below.
2. The District, its officials, officers, employees and volunteers are added as insured on all liability insurance policies listed above.
3. It is agreed that any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District will apply in excess of and not contribute with, the insurance described above.
4. The District is named as loss payee on the property insurance policies described above, if any.
5. All rights of subrogation under the property insurance policy listed above have been waived against the District.
6. The workers' compensation insurer named above, if any, agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the District for injuries to employees of the
insured resulting from work for the District or use of the District's premises or facilities.

ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT
600 E Mariposa St.

Altadena CA 91001

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED
ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

Page 96 of 138



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 01 12 19

POLICY NUMBER: CSC0000696

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1CG 20 01 12 19

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY 
– OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 
PART LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Other Insurance
Condition and supersedes any provision to the
contrary:

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance
This insurance is primary to and will not seek
contribution from any other insurance available to
an additional insured under your policy provided
that:
(1) The additional insured is a Named Insured

under such other insurance; and

(2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or
agreement that this insurance would be
primary and would not seek contribution
from any other insurance available to the
additional insured.

Page 97 of 138



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 10 04 13

POLICY NUMBER: CSC0000696

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2CG 20 10 04 13

ADDITIONAL INSURED – OWNERS, LESSEES OR 
CONTRACTORS – SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

A. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for "bodily injury",
"property damage" or "personal and advertising
injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:
1. Your acts or omissions; or

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your
behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations
for the additional insured(s) at the location(s)
designated above.
However:
1. The insurance afforded to such additional

insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following additional
exclusions apply:
This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or
"property damage" occurring after:
1. All work, including materials, parts or

equipment furnished in connection with such
work, on the project (other than service,
maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or
on behalf of the additional insured(s) at the
location of the covered operations has been
completed; or

Location(s) Of Covered Operations
Where specified by fully executed written contract.

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

Any person or organization to whom the Named Insured 
has agreed by a fully executed written contract that such 
person or organization be added as an Additional 
Insured, but only with respect to operations performed 
by or on behalf of the Named Insured and only with 
respect to occurrences subsequent to the making of 
such fully executed written contract otherwise covered 
by this insurance

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Organization(s)

Page 98 of 138



POLICY NUMBER: CSC0000696

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 2 of 2CG 20 10 04 13

2. That portion of "your work" out of which the
injury or damage arises has been put to its
intended use by any person or organization
other than another contractor or
subcontractor engaged in performing
operations for a principal as a part of the
same project. 

C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to
Section III – Limits Of Insurance:
If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the most we
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:
1. Required by the contract or agreement; or 
2. Available under the applicable Limits of

Insurance shown in the Declarations;
whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the
Declarations.

Page 99 of 138



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 37 04 13

POLICY NUMBER: CSC0000696

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1CG 20 37 04 13

ADDITIONAL INSURED – OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS – COMPLETED OPERATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

A. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only
with respect to liability for "bodily injury" or
"property damage" caused, in whole or in part, by
"your work" at the location designated and
described in the Schedule of this endorsement
performed for that additional insured and
included in the "products-completed operations
hazard".
However:
1. The insurance afforded to such additional

insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured
is required by a contract or agreement, the
insurance afforded to such additional insured
will not be broader than that which you are
required by the contract or agreement to
provide for such additional insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following is added to
Section III – Limits Of Insurance: 
If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the most we
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:
1. Required by the contract or agreement; or 
2. Available under the applicable Limits of

Insurance shown in the Declarations;
whichever is less. 
This endorsement shall not increase the
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the
Declarations.

Location And Description Of Completed Operations
Where specified by fully executed written contract.

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

Any person or organization to whom the Named 
Insured has agreed by a fully executed written contract 
that such person or organization be added as an 
Additional Insured for Completed Operations 
Coverage, but only with respect to operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Named Insured and 
only with respect to occurrences subsequent to the 
making of such fully executed written contract 
otherwise covered by this insurance.

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) 
Or Organization(s)

Page 100 of 138



This endorsement, effective: 01/14/2024
(at 12:01 A.M. standard time at the address of the Named Insured as showing in the 
Declarations) forms a part of Policy No: CSC0000696
Issued to: Loengreen Inc. dba Loengreen NV LLC
By: United National Insurance Company

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

Includes copyrighted material of ISO Commercial Risk Services, 
Inc. with its permission. Copyright, ISO Commercial Risk Services, 

Inc.

Page 1 of 1EPA-1719 (01/2014)

BLANKET WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF 
RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to SECTION IV-CONDITIONS, Paragraph 8. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery 
Against Others To Us:
We waive any right of recovery we may have against a person or organization because of payments we
make for injury or damage arising out of your ongoing operations or "your work" and included in the
"products completed operations hazard” provided you have agreed to do so in writing in a contract or
agreement with that person or organization.

All other terms and conditions of the policy apply.

Page 101 of 138



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

  

ALTADENA LIBRARY DISTRICT

See ACORD 101

1,000,000

01/05/202501/05/202401598261Y

✘
✘

✘

✘
A

11770UNITED FNCL CAS CO

89146NVLas Vegas

6268 Spring Mountain Rd #110C

Loengreen Nv LLC

vegasinsurance83@gmail.com

7023317503(702) 331-7500

Se Kim

89146NVLas Vegas

6376 Spring Mountain Road Suite 7

Y W Kim Inc. dba Vegas Insurance Group - NV

3/4/2024

Page 102 of 138



EFFECTIVE DATE:

NAMED INSURED

POLICY NUMBER

NAIC CODECARRIER

AGENCY

LOC #:

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

ofPageADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

FORM TITLE:FORM NUMBER:

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

1. None of the above-described policies will be canceld until 30 days' written notice has been given to the District at the address indicated below.

2. The District, its officials, officers, employees and volunteers are added as insured on all liability insurance policies listed above.

3. It is agreed that any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District will apply in excess of and not contribute with, the insurance described above.

4. The District is named as loss payee on the property insurance policies described above, if any.

5. All rights of subrogation under the property insurance policy listed above have been waived against the District.

6. The workers' compensation insurer named above, if any, agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the  District for injuries to employees of the Insured 

resulting from work for the District or use of the District's premises or facilities.

 Certificate Of Liability Insurance25

Loengreen Nv LLC

11770UNITED FINANCIAL CAS CO

01598261

Y W Kim Inc. dba Vegas Insurance Group - NV

11

Page 103 of 138



THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 20 01 12 19

POLICY NUMBER: CSC0000696

© Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1CG 20 01 12 19

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY 
– OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 
PART LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Other Insurance
Condition and supersedes any provision to the
contrary:

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance
This insurance is primary to and will not seek
contribution from any other insurance available to
an additional insured under your policy provided
that:
(1) The additional insured is a Named Insured

under such other insurance; and

(2) You have agreed in writing in a contract or
agreement that this insurance would be
primary and would not seek contribution
from any other insurance available to the
additional insured.

Page 104 of 138



Page 105 of 138



Page 106 of 138



Page 107 of 138



Page 108 of 138



Page 109 of 138



Page 110 of 138



Page 111 of 138



Page 112 of 138



Page 113 of 138



Page 114 of 138



Page 115 of 138



Page 116 of 138



Page 117 of 138



Page 118 of 138



Page 119 of 138



Page 120 of 138



Page 121 of 138



Page 122 of 138



Page 123 of 138



Page 124 of 138



Page 125 of 138



Page 126 of 138



Page 127 of 138



Page 128 of 138



Page 129 of 138



Page 130 of 138



Page 131 of 138



Page 132 of 138



Page 133 of 138



Page 134 of 138



BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
AGENDA ITEM VIII.B. REPORT FOR MARCH 2024 

REPORT: Agenda Item VIII.b. MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow LOCATION: Main Library Community Room 

TITLE: Authorization for District Director to contract with a Special Inspections, Testing, and 
Soils Engineering Consulting Firm(s) 

BACKGROUND: 

The Facilities Committee has been working in coordination with our capital project management 
team from Huckabee Inc. and our attorney, Kevin Flautt, of Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann and 
Girard to select firms to provide special construction inspections, materials testing, and soils 
engineering services required by Los Angeles County during the construction of the two library 
projects. 

Previous to this, the Board of Trustees approved the RFP for Construction Inspection and/or 
Soils Engineering Services On-Call Services on January 22, 2024. The RFP was posted on 
January 24, 2024 with a closing deadline of February 23, 2024. 

Prior to the deadline, the selection team met to review the drafted evaluation criteria based on 
the requirements in the RFP and came to agreement on the method for scoring the proposals 
on our initial review.   

Eleven proposals were received by the deadline.  These firms included: 

• Earth Systems Pacific
• Fenagh LLC
• GeoTek
• Grace Inspection and Testing Inc.
• Hilltop Geotechnical, Inc.
• Koury Engineering & Testing, Inc.
• MTGL, Inc.
• RMA Group
• TGR Geotechnical, Inc.
• Twining, Inc.
• Universal Engineering Sciences

Each proposal was reviewed carefully and scored by the scoring team, which consisted of 
Jennifer Pearson (Capital Project Manager – Huckabee) and Chad Nielsen (Construction 
Manager – Huckabee). The five top-scoring firms were: 

Page 135 of 138



• Earth Systems Pacific
• Fenagh LLC
• Koury Engineering & Testing, Inc.
• MTGL, Inc.
• TGR Geotechnical, Inc.

A copy of the final scoring matrix is included with this report. 

After reviewing the scoring with the scoring team, it is the unanimous recommendation of the 
Facilities Committee to approve the five top-scoring firms for on-call services as needed for the 
two library construction projects. The proposals for all 5 firms can be found on the District 
Board Materials page on the Library website.

FISCAL IMPACT 

Although the selected consultants have provided hourly billing rates for their staff, the total 
project cost is unknown at this time, and will depend on the final building designs and Los 
Angeles County construction inspection and testing requirements. The Ad-Hoc Facilities 
Committee is currently budgeting $241,752, approximately 0.8% of the total capital project 
budget. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board of Trustees authorize the District Director to contract with any of the selected firms for CEQA consulting services as outlined in the professional 
services agreement and RFQ/P until the conclusion of both library building renovations, up 
to the budgeted amount of $200,000. 

Page 136 of 138



For this round, please score each proposal out of the total possible points. Firm: Earth Systems Firm: Fenagh Firm: Geotek Firm: Grace InspectionsFirm: Hilltop Firm: Koury Firm: MTGL Firm: RMA Group Firm: TGR Firm: Twining Firm: UES

CRITERIA TOTAL POINTS POSSIBLE SCORING CONSIDERATIONS TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

TOTAL POINTS 

AWARDED

Experience
50

- Provided a list of at least 5 client references that the 

firm has provided similar services.

- Years of experience in providing hazardous materials 

consulting services

- Disciplinary actions, administrative proceedings,

claims, etc. in last 5 years?

49 47 48 46 43 47 45 48 45 47 45

Personnel 20
- Have key personnel been successfully involved with 

projects of similar scope and magnitude?
18 18 15 13 16 15 19 17 15 20 16

Qualifications 50

- Demonstrated understanding of the purpose, scope 

and objective of the services to be performed

- Ability and capacity to perform the work (including key 

personnel committed to project and local presence)

49 49 42 46 42 45 50 45 47 45 45

Costs 30

- Pricing schedule is transparent, responsive, and 

reasonable, including the thorough breakdown of costs

- Comprehensive hourly rate and testing fee schedule

26 28 26 27 26 28 28 28 28 26 29

Likelihood of Success 50

-Does the proposer have a high likelihood of success in 

performing the work with the ALD?

-Is the proposer a good fit for the ALD?
46 41 44 42 38 43 46 35 50 41 42

TOTAL POINTS 200 0 188 183 175 174 165 178 188 173 185 179 177

FINAL RANKINGS 1 4 8 9 11 6 1 10 3 5 7

SPECIAL INSPECTIONS, TESTING, AND SOILS ENGINEERING SERVICES RFQ/P PROPOSAL SCORING

1
Page 137 of 138



  
  

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  
AGENDA ITEM VIII.C. 

   
AGENDA ITEM: VIII.c. MEETING DATE: March 25, 2024 

PREPARED BY: Nikki Winslow  LOCATION:  Main Library Community Room 
 

 
TITLE: Main Library Late Open for the Bob Lucas Memorial Library and Literacy Center 
Groundbreaking Ceremony. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On April 18, 2024, the District will hold a groundbreaking ceremony for the Bob Lucas Memorial 
Library and Literacy Center. District leadership, Trustees, community stakeholders, community 
partners, and our architectural firm will be in attendance to commemorate this “next chapter” 
milestone. The District would like to provide staff the opportunity to attend the groundbreaking 
and participate in this celebration. To provide this opportunity, the District would need to open a 
later time on this date. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Board approve a late open of the Main Library on Thursday, April 18, 
2024, at 1pm. This allows for staff attendance at the groundbreaking as well as allow staff 
adequate time to perform opening duties before the 1pm open time. The open hours of the 
library on this date would be a total of 5, from 1pm – 6pm. 

Page 138 of 138


	1 - 2024.3.25 - BOT Agenda
	2 - 2024.2.26 - BOT MINUTES
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VB.1. - Final AS Board Report February 2024
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VB.2. - YFS Board Report February 2024
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VB.3. - BL Feb24 Report
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VB.4. - Report - IT-TS
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VB.5. - Facilities Report
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VI.a.ii. - Friends Report
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VI.B. - Administrative Update March 2024 1
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VI.C. - Staff Report Financials February 2024 (1)
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VI.E.1. - Facilities Ad Hoc
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VI.E.2. - Election Ad Hoc
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VI.F. - Government Liaison Report March, 2024
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VI.F.2. - Government Liaison Report March, 2024 - Supporting
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VIII.A. - Bob Lucas Contractor Recommendation
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VIII.B. - Construction Special Inspections Services Recommendation 3
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VIII.B. - Construction Special Inspections Services Recommendation 
	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VIII.B. - Construction Special Inspections Services Recommendation 2

	2024.03.25 - Agenda Item VIII.C. - Main Library Late open April 18



